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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH
ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM"”) OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached
than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in
such companies and should make the decision to invest only after
due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to

professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is
a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a

liguid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy
or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or

any part of the contents of this report.

This report for which the directors of Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings
Limited collectively and individually accept full responsibility,
includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with
regard to Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited. The directors,
having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best
of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this
report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this report

misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement

TE®RE

For and on behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Hua
Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “"Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2011.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group's achieved a revenue growth for the year ended 31
March 2011 mainly attributable to the strong sales from the
newly acquired pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution and
pharmaceutical retail chain business in the People’s Republic
of China (the "PRC"). Turnover of the Group for the year
was approximately HK$1,490.868 million in comparison with
HK$179.765 million in 2010. Gross profit of the Group was
approximately HK$189.590 million in comparison with HK$64.384
million in 2010. Net profit attributable to the owners of the
Company was approximately 31.456 million in comparison with
the net loss of approximately HK$211.283 million.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Company had
successfully raised net proceeds of approximately HK$86.4 million
through a rights issue. The Company used not more than half of
the net proceeds to repay part of the shareholders loan and the
remaining net proceeds were used as general working capital of
the Group.

OPERATION REVIEW
During the year ended 31 March 2011, we have seen the

further strengthening of our general hospital operations in
competitiveness. The acquisition of Huihao Medicine Wholesale
Group in March 2010 has significantly improved its sales and
distribution penetration in a field which is characterized by rapid
market growth. We are pleased with the outcomes of the drug
distribution tendering in 2010 in Fujian Province and the Group
clearly demonstrated the advantages and competitiveness of
the well-established sales network in the region. As a result of
the implementation of the healthcare reform measures and the
PRC Government mandated reform of healthcare standards on a
national basis, the revenue from the wholesale and distribution
of pharmaceutical products to hospitals in Fujian Province has
steadily grown, thus gaining more market share and having
further strengthened the Group's position in the PRC's healthcare
industry. The Group’s pharmaceutical retail chain business
in Fujian Province was ranked a leading position in terms of
competitiveness and growth potential in the PRC which allowed us
to maintain our position as the market leader in the province.
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APPRECIATION

I would like to thank our management team and all our staff
for their untiring efforts and significant contribution during the
past year. | would also like to take this opportunity to express my
sincere gratitude and appreciation to all our fellow shareholders
and institutional investors for their continuous support and

confidence in our Group.

Yung Kwok Leong
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 27 June 2011
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EERENWR DM

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Summary of the results of the Group for the financial year ended
31 March 2011 is as follows:

o Total turnover was approximately HK$1,490.868 million
(2010: approximately HK$179.765 million), representing
about a seven-fold increase as compared to the previous
year.

o Gross profit was approximately HK$189.590 million (2010:
approximately HK$64.384 million), representing about a
two-fold increase as compared to the previous year.

o Excluding the loss on early redemption of promissory note
and the gain on disposal of subsidiaries, the operating profit
was approximately HK$78.985 million as compared to an
operating loss of approximately HK$9.009 million after
excluding impairment loss on goodwill and loss on disposal
of subsidiaries for the previous year.

o Net profit attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$31.456 million as compared to a net loss
attributable to owners of approximately HK$211.283 million
for the previous year.

o The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2011 (2010: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of general
hospital and healthcare and hospital management services,
pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution and pharmaceutical
retail chain business in the PRC.

Results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2011 have
shown improvement in turnover compared with the previous
year. Total turnover of the Group for the year was approximately
HK$1,490.868 million (2010: approximately HK$179.765 million).
Gross profit of the Group was approximately HK$189.590 million
(2010: approximately HK$64.384 million). The increase in turnover
and gross profit of the Group was from retail, wholesale and
distribution of pharmaceutical products in the PRC.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Net profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2011 was approximately HK$31.456 million
(2010: net loss approximately HK$211.283 million). The net profit
was mainly attributable to the acquisition of the pharmaceutical
wholesale and distribution and pharmaceutical retail chain
business in the PRC.

Selling and distribution expenses for the year ended 31 March
2011 were approximately HK$60.498 million (2010: approximately
HK$22.277 million). This increase was related to the marketing
and promotional expenses as a result of the acquisition of the
pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution and pharmaceutical

retail chain business in the PRC.

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 March 2011
amounted to approximately HK$61.451 million (2010:
approximately HK$52.914 million). The increases were mainly
due to the increase in numbers of staff and related staff costs as
a result of the acquisition of the pharmaceutical whole sale and

distribution and pharmaceutical retail chain business in the PRC.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution and
pharmaceutical retail chain businesses

The Group engages in the wholesale and distribution of a
broad range of pharmaceutical products to hospitals, clinics
and pharmacies in Fujian Province, the PRC. The Group’'s
pharmaceutical retail chain operation is also in the leading
position within Fujian Province in both retail drug store numbers
and comprehensive competitiveness. The Group continues to
allocate resources and to look for business opportunities to
expand the pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution and retail
chain businesses. The turnover contributed by the pharmaceutical
wholesale and distribution and pharmaceutical retail chain
businesses for the year ended 31 March 2011 was approximately
HK$1,375.439 million (from 8 March to 31 March 2010:
approximately 52.855 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

General hospital and healthcare and hospital
management services

As at 31 March 2011, the Group operates two general hospitals
in Chongqging and Jiaxing cities and manages one general hospital
in Zhuhai city which principally engaged in the provision of
general hospital services including but not limited to medical
wards, surgical wards, cosmetic surgery, dermatology and medical
checkup and examination. The Group also provides healthcare
management and training and consultancy services for hospitals.
The total turnover contributed by these general hospitals and
healthcare and hospital management services for the year ended
31 March 2011 was approximately HK$115.429 million (2010:
approximately HK$126.91 million).

Future Prospects

The management of the Group in the 2011/2012 fiscal year will
continue to rely on its two core businesses model (i.e. general
hospital operations and pharmaceutical products businesses) for
growth potential. The Group will also actively look for further
development opportunities made available by the healthcare
reform and the first year of the 12th Five Year Plan. We are
optimistic towards this year and with the growth trend, we
hope to bring the Company to a new high standard in the PRC's
healthcare industry.

With the Group’s accurate market positioning, in 2011, our
hospitals will benefit tremendously from the outcomes of
healthcare reform in the PRC, especially based on our solid
development of hospital management systems and well-trained
professionals. At the same time, we should see further cost
efficiency in our hospitals to maximize profitability while we

continue to look for growth opportunities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

For the new fiscal year, the Group’s pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution divisions will continue to rapidly grow by taking the
advantages of the favorable regional policies for the healthcare
which supports the consolidation of the present scattering
market. Cost controls and optimization will help us obtain much
better margins while the close alliance with large pharmaceutical
manufacturers for better brands will facilitate the market share
increase. The Group’s management is optimistic about the new
fiscal year and we will continue to grow as long as we have
firmly adhered to the strategies designed for the upswing in the

healthcare business in the PRC.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group had total cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$77.227 million as at 31 March 2011 (2010: approximately
HK$59.712 million).

The Group recorded total current assets of approximately
HK$516.621 million as at 31 March 2011 (2010: approximately
HK$413.372 million) and total current liabilities of approximately
HK$299.275 million as at 31 March 2011 (2010: approximately
HK$301.031 million). The current ratio of the Group, calculated
by dividing the current assets by the current liabilities, was
approximately 1.726 as at 31 March 2011 (2010: approximately
1.373).

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 14 September 2010, Ally Health International Limited (”Ally
Health”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company entered into
the sale and purchase agreement pursuant to which Ally Health
agreed to sale the entire issued share capital of Large Forever
Group Limited (“Large Forever”) (a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company) to an independent third party of the Company
at the consideration of HK$6.7 million. The principal asset of
Large Forever is the indirect 70% interest in Shangrao City Xiehe

Hospital Limited.

Details of the disposal of subsidiaries are disclosed in the Note 34

to the financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 March 2011, no member of the Group was engaged

in any litigation or arbitration of material importance and no
litigation or claim of material importance was known to the
directors to be pending or threatened against any member of the

Group.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

Since almost all transactions of the Group are denominated in
Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars and most of the bank deposits
are being kept in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars to minimize
exposure to foreign exchange risk, the directors believe that there
is no significant foreign exchange risk to the Group. Therefore,
the Group had not implemented any formal hedging or other

alternative policies to deal with such exposure during the year.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 March 2011, the Group had bank-borrowing outstanding
balances of approximately HK$49.194 million. The Group’s
pledged bank deposits of approximately HK$13.809 million were

used to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the year, the revenue of the Group was principally
generated from: (1) provision of general hospital services; (2)
provision of healthcare and hospital management service; (3)
pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution and pharmaceutical
retail chain business. Financial information in respect of these

operations is presented in Note 5 to the financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2011, the total issued share capital of the
Company was approximately HK$591.219 million (2010:
approximately HK$466.423 million) divided into 672,438,264
ordinary shares and 510,000,000 non-voting convertible
preference shares (2010: 449,511,198 ordinary shares and
483,333,333 non-voting convertible preference shares (restated))
of HK$0.50 each.

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during

the year are set out in Note 16 to the financial statements.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 March 2011, the Group had 1,648 (2010: 1,552) full
time employees (including directors) as shown in the following
table:
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Number of Staff

Location = BIA#
Hong Kong BE 17
PRC (including cities of Beijing, FE (BFdtET - BEEW 1,631

Chongging, Jiaxing,
Zhuhai and the Fujian Province)

For the year ended 31 March 2011, staff costs (including directors
emoluments) amounted to approximately HK$61.984 million
(2010: approximately HK$36.720 million). The Group remunerates
its employees based on individual performance and qualification.
Apart from the basic remuneration, staff benefits include the
contribution to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme, bonus
and medical coverage in Hong Kong; and basic insurance for
the elderly, basic medical insurance, work injury insurance and
unemployment insurance to the employees in the PRC. The Group
also adopted employee share option scheme to provide eligible
employees a performance incentive for continuous and improved
services with the Group and to enhance their contributions to
increase profits by encouraging capital accommodation and share

ownership.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profiles

EEREREEAERTE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yung Kwok Leong (“Mr. Yung”), aged 46, the Chairman of
the Board, being a registered economist in the Fujian Province in
the PRC, has over 20 years’ experience in corporate management
and investment in the healthcare and pharmaceutical sectors
in the PRC. Mr. Yung is currently the chairman of Hong Kong
Putian Co. and the honorable chairman of Hong Kong Puxian
Native Association. Mr. Yung is also currently the vice-chairman
of the National Committee of the Health, the Health Insurance
Association of Fujian and the committee member of Putian City,
Fujian Committee of Chinese Political Consultative Conference.
Mr. Yung was appointed as an executive director of the Company,
the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company on 2 March 2005, 29 April 2005 and 26 March 2010
respectively.

Dr. Jiang Tao (”Dr. Jiang”), aged 55, holds a degree of doctor
of audiology from the Arizona School of Health Sciences of AT
Still University in the United States and two master’s degrees in
audiology and in special education from Lamar University of Texas
in the United States. He served as senior management in several
enterprises in USA, Canada and the PRC with over 15 years of
experience in senior management, consultancy and investment in
the PRC, Hong Kong, Canada and the United States. Dr. Jiang has
also established six enterprises in the PRC with Canadian capital.
He is currently the Visiting Professor of the Kunming Normal
University and Sichuan Foreign Language University, formerly of
Dalhousie University of Canada, Sichuan University, and Sun Yat-
sen Medical University. Dr. Jiang was appointed as an executive
director and Deputy Chief Executive of the Company on 3 January
2007 and 26 March 2010 respectively.

Mr. Weng Jiaxing (“Mr. Weng”), aged 35, holds a bachelor
degree in finance. Mr. Weng has over 10 years of managerial
experience in retail chain, healthcare and pharmaceutical
businesses. Mr. Weng was appointed as an executive director and
Deputy Chief Executive of the Company on 26 March 2010.

Mr. Zheng Gang (“Mr. Zheng”), aged 43, holds a master degree
in business administration from Cardiff Business School in the
United Kingdom and a bachelor degree in engineering from
Xiamen University in the PRC. Mr. Zheng has over 17 years of
management experience in finance, investment and trading. Mr.
Zheng was appointed as an executive director of the Company on
1 August 2007.
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Dr. Huang Jiaqing (“Dr. Huang”), aged 60, has over 25 years
of professional experience in the PRC's medical fields, including
clinical, preventive and emergency medicine. Dr. Huang has
served as clinical doctor, director of hospital’s emergency centre,
head of the sanitation and anti-epidemic department in hospital,
head of the hospital and medical administration bureau in the
PRC municipal government. To honour Dr. Huang’s distinguished
expertise in the medical fields, he enjoys special subsidisation from
the State Council of the PRC. Dr. Huang is currently the executive
vice president of the Group. Dr. Huang was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 30 July 2009.

Mr. Chen Jin Shan (“Mr. Chen”), aged 43, holds a bachelor
degree in finance and accounting in the PRC. Mr. Chen has
over 15 years of accounting experience in private companies.
He had also been a project manager for more than 6 years in an
accounting firm. Mr. Chen was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 25 April 2006.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Wong Yu Man, James (“Dr. Wong”), aged 58, holds two
bachelor degrees in medicine and surgery from the University of
Hong Kong. Dr. Wong also holds a doctorate degree in medicine
from Freiburg University in Germany. He has over 29 years of
experience in medical and healthcare services in Hong Kong.
Dr. Wong was appointed as the non-executive director of the
Company on 20 March 2007.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne (“"Ms. Wong"”), aged 47, has over 25

years of experience in finance, accounting, taxation and corporate
affairs. She is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in Australia, a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the
Society of Trust and Estate Practitioners. Ms. Wong holds a
bachelor degree in economics from the University of Sydney,
Australia. Ms. Wong is currently the managing director of a
private company providing consulting and management services,
a registered Insurance Agent, as well as the chief financial officer
of a local law firm and consultant of a local CPA firm. Ms. Wong
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EEREREEAERTE

is also currently an independent non-executive director and a
member of the remuneration committee and the chairman of the
audit committee of Phoenitron Holdings Limited which is listed
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Wong was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company on 1
November 2007.

Prof. Hu Shanlian (“Prof. Hu"), aged 74, is a professor in
health economics and has a master degree in science from the
London School of Tropical Medicine and Hygiene. At present, he
is the director of Training Centre for Health Management and
Pharmacoeconomics Research and Evaluation Centre at School
of Public Health at Fudan University in the PRC. Prof. Hu is also
the director of Health Development Research Centre in the
Shanghai Bureau of Health. Prof. Hu also held senior positions in
the National Health Economic Institution and China Network of
Training and Research in Health Economics and Financing between
1991 and 2005, which were supported by the Ministry of Health
of the PRC and World Bank respectively. Prof. Hu was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company on 30
July 2009.

Prof. Lu Chuanzhen (“Prof. Lu”), aged 73, is a neurologist and
has over 50 years of medical professional experience. Prof. Lu
is currently the lifetime professor of Shanghai Huashan Hospital
in the PRC and a director in the World Health Organisation’s
Neuroscience Research and Training Centre. Prof. Lu was also the
chairman and director of the Institute of Neurology in Shanghai
Medical University, the chairman of the Chinese Association of
Neurology and chairman of the Shanghai association of Neurology
in the Chinese Medical Society. Prof. Lu also has an international
membership with New York Academy of Sciences. Prof. Lu was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 30 July 2009.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lam Williamson (“Mr. Lam”), aged 36, joined the Group in
December 2007. Mr. Lam is the Group's chief financial officer and
company secretary of the Company. He has more than 10 years’
experience in finance and company secretarial functions. Mr. Lam
is a member of the Certified Practising Accountant in Australia
and also a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Subject to the deviations as disclosed in this report, the
Company has complied with all the code provisions on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in the GEM Listing Rules by
establishing formal and transparent procedures to protect and
maximise the interests of shareholders during the year under

review.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all directors,
the directors have complied with such code of conduct and the
required standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the directors throughout the year ended
31 March 2011.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEETING
The Board members for the year ended 31 March 2011 and up to

the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Yung Kwok Leong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Dr. Jiang Tao (Deputy Chief Executive)

Mr. Weng lJiaxing (Deputy Chief Executive)

Mr. Zheng Gang

Dr. Huang Jiaging

Mr. Chen Jin Shan

Non-executive director:
Dr. Wong Yu Man, James
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Independent non-executive directors:
Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne
Prof. Hu Shanlian

Prof. Lu Chuanzhen

The Board is currently composed of six executive directors
(including the Chairman), one non-executive director and three
independent non-executive directors with a balance of skills and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the Group. The
Board is responsible for corporate strategy, annual and interim
results, succession planning, risk management, major acquisitions,
disposals and capital transaction, and other significant operational
and financial matters. Major corporate matters that are
specifically delegated by the Board to the management include
the preparation of annual and interim accounts for the Board
approval before public reporting, execution of business strategies
and initiatives adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate
systems of internal controls and risk management procedures, and
compliance with relevant statutory requirements and rules and

regulations.

The directors’ biographical information is set out on pages 14
to 16 of this Annual Report. All executive directors have given
sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Group. Each
executive director has sufficient experience to hold the position as
to carry out his or her duties effectively and efficiently. There is no

relationship among the members of the Board.
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The Company appointed three independent non-executive
directors who have appropriate and sufficient experience and
qualifications to carry out their duties so as to protect the interests
of shareholders. All of them have been appointed for a term
of one year from the date of appointment and will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving each other not
less than one month’s notice. Each director should be subject to

retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Pursuant to the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules,
the Company has received written confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence to the
Company. Based on such confirmations of independence, the
Company considers all of the independent non-executive directors

to be independent.

The Board held a regular board meeting for each quarter to

consider and approve the Group’s results announcement.

Corporate Governance Report

ERERRSE

RRRECEE=ZNUBLFATES  REEH
HERARZEBREBUAMTREZRE
RMRERRAE - 2ERBUFATES 2
MYHRZEESRE—F HESKERZ
- EEEA-FRHELHRETPR—ERE
HFUALLE -BUESREIE=FHESR

S
—IN°

RBAER EHBRBZRE A2 SREE
BUFYTESRERARA 2B IMREZ
BRE - REZEB/UMER  A2FAXHE
EBEVFNTESIRBLAL

ESEETERETER  UEERILELE
EIE SN

19



20

Corporate Governance Report
ERER®RSE

Details of the attendance of the meetings of the Board are as

ExHFESEER2HBOT ¢

follows:

Directors Attendance
EE HiFE
Mr. Yung Kwok Leong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) 2/4
SEREE (ZERTHAER)

Dr. Jiang Tao (Deputy Chief Executive) 4/4
BEEL (THEEE)

Mr. Weng lJiaxing (Deputy Chief Executive) 1/4
HINE T (778 EI#E #)

Mr. Zheng Gang 4/4
BR 8 5T £

Dr. Huang Jiaging 1/4
EMEEL

Mr. Chen Jin Shan 1/4
PR kE

Dr. Wong Yu Man, James 1/4
IHREE

Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne 4/4
BREut

Prof. Hu Shanlian 2/4
tHEBRER

Prof. Lu Chuanzhen 3/4
REEHR

Apart from the above regular board meetings of the year, the
Board will meet on other occasions when a Board level decision on

a particular matter is required.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The roles of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company are not
segregated and are exercised by the same individual. Mr. Yung
Kwok Leong serves as the Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer. The Board believes that vesting the roles of
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer in the same person
provides consistent and sustainable development of the Group,
strong and consistent leadership in the Company’s decision
making and operational efficiency.

Non-executive Director

Code provision A.4.1 provides that non-executive director should
be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election. The
Company’s non-executive director has been appointed for specific
term and subject to re-election.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The remuneration committee was established on 3 June 2005
in compliance with the code provision. The chairman of the
committee is Mr. Zheng Gang, an executive director of the
Company, and other members include Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne,
Prof. Hu Shanlian and Prof. Lu Chuanzhen, all of them are the
independent non-executive directors of the Company.

The role and function of the remuneration committee include
the determination of the specific remuneration package of all
executive directors, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable for
loss or termination of their office or appointment, and making
recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of non-
executive directors. The remuneration committee considers factors
such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the directors, employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance-based
remuneration.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, no meeting was held but
resolutions in writing from the remuneration committee members
were passed to consider and approve the increase of emoluments
of an executive director.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board does not establish a nomination committee in
consideration of the size of the Group. The Board is empowered
under the Company’s articles of association to appoint any person
as a director either to fill a casual vacancy on or as an additional
member of the Board. Suitable candidates will be proposed
to the Board for consideration, and the Board will review the
qualifications of the relevant candidate for determining the
suitability to the Group on the basis of his/her qualifications,

experience and background.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
During the year ended 31 March 2011, the fees paid or payable to

the auditors in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by

the auditors of the Group were as follows:

Nature of services

EREZRA

ZRIAEBRE  EESWERYREE
EE -EZERBEARACABERAER
BREEEFALTHEES - LME%@EEH—*:”%RESZ
HEESS2HERE - SBARBRE2ZES
SUHEE ﬁi%éﬂﬂﬂiﬂﬁi@)\zéﬁ :
RERERTIMHEARTESAEEZTE -

£ B 6 B &
RBE-2——F=ZA=+-BLFE HiF
EERBETREZ BURFERRHC A
NFRUM2BAMT :

Amount (HK$'000)

REHEE &B|(T#ET)
Audit services 900
BEZRE

Non-audit services 150
FEEZ R

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee on 2 November
2001, with written terms of reference in compliance with rules
5.28 to 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
audit committee are: (i) to ensure the adequacy and effectiveness
of the accounting and financial controls of the Group; (ii)
oversee the performance of internal control systems and financial
reporting process; and (iii) monitor the integrity of the financial
statements and compliance with statutory and listing requirements
and to oversee independence and qualifications of the external
auditors. The audit committee comprises three members,
including Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne, Prof. Hu Shanlian and Prof.
Lu Chuanzhen. All of them are the independent non-executive
directors. The chairlady of the audit committee is Ms. Wong Ka

Wai, Jeanne.
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The audit committee held four meetings during the year under
review. Details of the attendance of the audit committee meetings

are as follows:

Corporate Governance Report
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ERZEENEEFEABRTNRER -§
REHFERZEEERZFBOT

Members Attendance
4] HiEE
Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne 4/4
% Fogun
Prof. Hu Shanlian 2/4
HEBHER
Prof. Lu Chuanzhen 3/4
BEEEHR

The Group’s unaudited quarterly and interim results and annual
audited results during the year ended 31 March 2011 have been
reviewed by the audit committee, which was of the opinion that
the preparation of such results complied with the applicable
accounting standards and requirements and that adequate

disclosure has been made.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining the Group’s internal
control and for reviewing the effectiveness of these controls.
Internal control systems are designed to meet the particular needs

of the Group and the risk to which it is exposed.
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In consideration of the size of the Group, the Board does not
consider to establish an internal audit team at present. However,
the key control procedure established by the Group is a day-to-day
supervision of the business by the executive directors, supported
by the managers responsible for the operation and the key division
support functions of finance, information system and human
resources. Key elements of internal control described below have

been in place throughout the year under review:

- procedures for the approval of capital expenditure and

payments;

- regular financial information provided to management for

reviewing the Group’s performance; and

- clearly defined management structure and lines of

responsibility.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group. The Board is not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or condition that might
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue
in business. Accordingly, the Board has prepared the financial

statements of the Company on a going concern basis.

The Board also acknowledges its responsibility to present a
balanced, clear and understandable assessment in the Company’s
annual, interim and quarterly reports, other price-sensitive
announcements and other financial disclosures required under the
GEM Listing Rules.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Board believes that a transparent and timely disclosure
of the Group’s information will enable shareholders and
investors to make the best investment decision and to have
better understanding on the Group’s business performance
and strategies. It is also vital for developing and maintaining
continuing investor relations with the Company’s potential and

existing investors.

The Company maintains a website at “www.huaxia-healthcare.
com” as a communication platform with shareholders and
investors, where information and updates on the Group’s financial

information and other information are available for public access.
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Report of the Directors
EEZEHE

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial

statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2011.

DATE OF INCORPORATION
The Company was incorporated and registered as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 28 May

2001 under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands.

The shares of the Company were listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange on 10 May 2002.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company while its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of general
hospital and healthcare and hospital management services,
pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution and pharmaceutical
retail chain business in the PRC. Details of the principal activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 42 to the financial

statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 15.03% of the Group’s total sales
and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted to

approximately 3.83%.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the
Group's five largest suppliers were approximately 15.44% of the
Group’s total purchases and purchases from the largest supplier

included therein amounted to approximately 4.61%.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder, which
to the knowledge of the directors owned more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, had any interest in the share

capital of any of the five largest customers of the Group.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2011 and
the state of the Company’s and the Group's affairs as at 31 March

2011 are set out in the financial statements on pages 44 to 163.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during

the year are set out in Note 16 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year are set out in Note 17 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity

respectively.

The Company had distributable reserves of approximately
HK$172.563 million as at 31 March 2011 (2010: approximately
223.497 million). Under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter
22 of the Cayman Islands, the share premium of the Company
is available for paying distributions or dividends to shareholders
subject to the provisions of its Memorandum and Articles
of Association and provided that immediately following the
distribution or dividend the Company is able to pay its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business. In accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association, dividends shall be
distributed out of the retained profits or other reserves, including

the share premium account, of the Company.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in Note 6 to the financial

statements.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE

CONTRACTS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date

of this report are:

Executive directors:

Mr. Yung Kwok Leong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Dr. Jiang Tao (Deputy Chief Executive)

Mr. Weng Jiaxing (Deputy Chief Executive)

Mr. Zheng Gang

Dr. Huang Jiaging

Mr. Chen Jin Shan

Non-executive director:
Dr. Wong Yu Man, James

Independent non-executive directors:
Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne
Prof. Hu Shanlian

Prof. Lu Chuanzhen

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Yung Kwok Leong, Dr. Jiang Tao and Ms. Wong
Ka Wai, Jeanne, the executive directors and independent non-
executive director of the Company, will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming general

meeting.
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Mr. Yung Kwok Leong, the executive director of the Company and
chairman of the Board has signed a letter of appointment with the
Company for a period of one year commencing from 1 February
2007 which will continue thereafter until terminated by either
party giving to the other party not less than one month’s notice in

writing.

Dr. Jiang Tao has been appointed as an executive director by
way of a letter of appointment with the Company for a period of
one year commencing from 3 January 2007 which will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the other

party not less than one month’s notice in writing.

Mr. Weng Jiaxing has been appointed as an executive director by
way of a letter of appointment with the Company for a period of
one year commencing from 26 March 2010 which will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the other

party not less than one month’s notice in writing.

Mr. Zheng Gang has been appointed as an executive director by
way of a letter of appointment with the Company for a period of
one year commencing from 1 August 2007 which will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the other

party not less than one month’s notice in writing.

Mr. Chen Jin Shan has been appointed as an executive director
by way of a letter of appointment with the Company for a period
of one year commencing from 25 April 2006 which will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the other

party not less than one month’s notice in writing.

Dr. Huang Jiaging has been appointed as an executive director by
way of a letter of appointment with the Company for a period
of one year commencing from 30 July 2009 which will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the other

party not less than one month’s notice in writing.
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Dr. Wong Yu Man, James, has been appointed as the non-
executive director by way of a letter of appointment with the
Company for a period of one year commencing from 20 March
2007 which will continue thereafter until terminated by either
party giving to the other party not less than one month’s notice in

writing.

Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director by way of a letter of appointment with the
Company for a period of one year commencing from 1 November
2007 which will continue thereafter until terminated by either
party giving to the other party not less than one month’s notice in

writing.

Prof. Hu Shanlian and Prof. Lu Chuanzhen have been appointed
as independent non-executive directors by way of letters
of employment with the Company for a period of one year
commencing from 30 July 2009 which will continue thereafter
until terminated by either party giving to the other party not less

than one month’s notice in writing.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors has any service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES

AND DEBENTURES
Disclosure of Interests

(a) Directors’ interests and short positions in the securities
of the Company and its associated corporations
As at 31 March 2011, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required

standards of dealings by directors of the Company as
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(a) EERFLFREENEIEZESFZE
aRke
RZZB-——H=ZA=1t—-H0 A2FE
ERFRTHRAEEADAHEEM[E
EE (EERIBSZRPEMRD ([BHR
HEMRD D) EXVER) 2R in ~ HERD K
EEETHEERER S RPERME352
RERALNAFECECMAH 2B
RKE  IRBAFERETRAES 462
S.6/RFTMARNBESETEENRE
BREBAES RN A KRB 2 EE R

referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, BT :
were as follows:
(i) Interests in shares: (i) RIFBESR:
Approximate
percentage
Nature Number of the total
Name of director of interest of shares Position issued shares
HERT
Bin@EHz
EElR BEanHg Bin& A y-§ i3 BHask
Mr. Yung Kwok Leong Corporate interest (Note 1) 120,960,500 Long 17.99%
SEREE NERE (HsE1) 120,960,500 R 17.99%
Personal interest (Note 2) 581,546,875 Long 86.48%
B ARz (MEE2) 581,546,875 #E 86.48%
Mr. Weng Jiaxing Personal interest 1,406,250 Long 0.21%
HMELEE Az 1,406,250 ) 0.21%
Mr. Zheng Gang Personal interest 2,000,000 Long 0.30%
BR 8 o B AR 2,000,000 e 0.30%
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Note 1: These shares are held through Easeglory Holdings

Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin

Islands with limited liability, the entire issued share

capital of which is owned by Mr. Yung Kwok Leong.

Note 2: The 581,546,875 shares represent (i) the 71,546,875

shares beneficially owned by Mr. Yung Kwok Leong,
and (ii) the 510,000,000 convertible preference

shares.

(ii) Interests in share options under Post-IPO share

MizET -

MizE2 :

LERGTIEBZRBEZERER
DA (RRBEZHSEMA
V2BERAREFRE -HER
ERTRAHSEZLERE
Ao

581,546,875 & 14 15
(WSBERAEBEREE
71,546,875 B % 5 K (ii)
510,000,000/% AT BB SE AR ©

(i) BARHREEBREADATZ

option scheme: BRiEEs
Number of
Exercise  share options
Name of director Exercise period price granted Position
=514
EEnR fT{ERe fTE®E MERERE B
Mr. Yung Kwok Leong 30 September 2009 to HK$0.50 1,700,000 Long
29 March 2019
PEREE ZEZNFNRZTHE 0.50/8 7T 1,700,000 ##&
—E-AF=RAZ=thHE
Dr. Jiang Tao 30 September 2009 to HK$0.50 800,000 Long
29 March 2019
BREL ZEZRFAAZTHE 0.50/8 7T 800,000 ¥#&
ZE-NE=ZRAZ=tNH
23 March 2010 to HK$1.12 1,563,380 Long
22 March 2015
“E-ZFZHA-+ZHE 11287 1,563,380 ¥A&
—E-RFE=AZ+ZH
Mr. Weng Jiaxing 23 March 2010 to HK$1.12 1,980,282 Long
22 March 2015
HmELE “E2-ZFZ-A-+=HE 11287 1,980,282 A
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Number of

Exercise  share options

Name of director Exercise period price granted Position
gtz
£ 3:3:1 TR fTE®| MEENE A
Mr. Zheng Gang 30 September 2009 to HK$0.50 800,000 Long
29 March 2019
b P “EZNFNAARZTHE 0.50& T 800,000 ¥#&
—E-RAF=R=+NAH
23 March 2010 to HK$1.12 2,814,084 Long
22 March 2015
“E-ZF=ZA-+ZHE 11287 2,814,084 #HE

—E-RE=ZA=+=H

Dr. Huang Jiaging 30 September 2009 to HK$0.50 1,000,000 Long
29 March 2014
EMEEL “EEAFARZTHE 0.50/8 T 1,000,000 ¥&
—E2-WME=ZAZ=tAIA
23 March 2010 to HK$1.12 312,676  Long
22 March 2015
“E2-ZF-AZ+=HE 11287 312,676 ¥R

“E-RF=ZA=1+=H

Mr. Chen Jin Shan 30 September 2009 to HK$0.50 1,700,000 Long
29 March 2019
REEE ZEZAFNAARZ=THE 0.508 7T 1,700,000 ¥7&
—E-AF=RZTHhH
23 March 2010 to HK$1.12 2,084,507 Long
22 March 2015
“Z-TFZA-+=HZ 11287 2,084,507 A

—E-RF=A=+=H

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2011, none of the BREYHIBEEEN R-ZEBE——F=A=+—
directors nor the chief executive of the Company had any B ARBAESEERTFTETHASHEEARAD
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or AREFAESEEIE (EEREESRBEKEA
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation EXVE) 21 E@RD - HERO S EEEDE
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the EREBRLSLBERBEISVEERAKNDFE
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 EvEDMAScEZR{AE  RIBEAIER
of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock TR AIES 46E5 67 BHNEAR DA RER
Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. FroERH AR
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(b) Substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions (b) FERHRMNBRMREMBHOZESER %

in shares and underlying shares b=

As at 31 March 2011, other than the interests of a director RZB——F=ZA=+—H BREXT=E
or chief executive of the Company as disclosed under the ERFETHAERRG  HEROR
heading “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests in shares, BREZEZER | —SREARRESH
underlying shares and debentures” above, the interests FETHRAEZEHZN  UWTALTRA
and short positions of persons in the shares and underlying PNEROEEEROGTEERBEESR
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required BERBIZE36HRERERARFEZER
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO MAH 2 ERRKRE

were as follows:

Long positions in shares of the Company: EAFIRGBZHE :
Approximate
percentage
Number of of the total
Name of shareholder shares Position Capacity issued shares
HERTRIDESR
BREE BRip& B B 5% ZEHEst
Easeglory Holdings Limited (Note 1) 120,960,500 Long Beneficial owner 17.99%
SRERBRLRE (M) 120,960,500 ) BEREEA 17.99%
Mrs. Yung Muk Ying (Note 1) 704,207,375 Long Interest of spouse 104.72%
FARHELZ L (FFaE1) 704,207,375 e [t 104.72%
Mr. Lau Kam Shui (Note 2) 36,580,000 Long Beneficial owner 5.44%
&t EE (HaF2) 36,580,000 B BEREEA 5.44%
Mrs. Lau Yuk Lan (Note 2) 36,580,000 Long Interest of spouse 5.44%
AEWML L (HE2) 36,580,000 R LB 5.44%
34 Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited
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Notes:

(1) The issued share capital of Easeglory Holdings Limited is
100% beneficially owned by Mr. Yung Kwok Leong, an
executive director and the Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. By virtue of her
being the spouse of Mr. Yung Kwok Leong, Mrs. Yung Muk
Ying is deemed to be interested in 120,960,500 shares
held by Easeglory Holdings Limited and 71,546,875 shares
and 1,700,000 share options and 510,000,000 convertible
preference shares beneficially held by Mr. Yung Kwok Leong

in personal capacity.

(2)  Mr. Lau Kam Shui is interested in 36,580,000 shares of the
Company. Mrs. Lau Yuk Lan is deemed to be interested in
36,589,000 shares by virtue of her being the spouse of Mr.

Lau Kam Shui.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2011, the directors of
the Company were not aware of any other person (other than the
directors and chief executive of the Company) who had interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SECURITIES

Apart from as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and chief
executive's interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures”
above, at no time since incorporation of the Company were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company or of any other body corporate
granted to any directors or their respective spouse or children
under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors,
their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age to

acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES MERR Rt @

As at 31 March 2011, there were 46,796,793 outstanding share R—ZE——F=ZA=Z=+—B @&k TE2
options, of which, 237,777 and 46,559,016 share options were 85 IR 546,796,79310 » H 237,777 &
granted pursuant to the respective Pre-IPO share option scheme 46,559,016 BRET D RIRIBERABEE
and Post-IPO share option scheme. Details of the outstanding FIEBRETEREXA A AHEERBRETER

share options as at 31 March 2011 were as follows: HoBBER-E——E=A=+—BHKTE
ZEBREZFEMT !

(i) Pre-IPO scheme (i) BROMBEMED
As at 31 March 2011, there were 237,777 outstanding share R-ZB-——F=A=+—0 ' BERKR=
options pursuant to the Pre-IPO scheme adopted on 20 April EE_FNA-THEHEMZE R AR
2002. A breakdown setting out the number of outstanding ERFTEIETH237, 7770 B RERM KT
share options, their respective exercise price and respective Fo-BARAEREATEETERTE
exercise period under the Pre-IPO scheme was as follows: EBREHE HEHZXBZ2TEERTHERS

FRARINT :

Number of

share options

outstanding

Categories of grantees Exercise period Exercise price HERITHEZ

EBAER TEH TR AR ES A

Former employee and 25 April 2002 HK$2.35 237,777
advisor of the Group to 24 April 2012

REBEAEE R —ZZ-_FNA-+HAZE 2.35% 7T 237,777

—E-—FmA=+mA
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(ii) Post-IPO share option scheme
As at 31 March 2011, there were 46,559,016 outstanding

share options pursuant to the Post-IPO scheme adopted

(i) BROFABEERWBETD
RZZE——F=A=+—8 RERKR=
EE_FMNA-+HERMZE R
E % 5T 818 T H46,559,01617 B8 A% #E &
RITE - BRABMBERTEBET K
THEBERESE HEBZTFEERT
EHERBRARAN T ¢

on 20 April 2002. A breakdown setting out the number of
outstanding share options, their respective exercise price and
respective exercise period under the Post-IPO scheme was as

follows:

Number of
share options

outstanding

Categories of grantees Exercise period Exercise price HERITHEZ
ABAEH TER TR ERRENE
Directors
E=
Mr. Yung Kwok Leong 30 September 2009 to 29 March 2019 HK$0.50 1,700,000
SEZTE ZETZAFNAA=THE 0.5058 7T 1,700,000
—E-AF=ZB=thAH
Dr. Jiang Tao 30 September 2009 to 29 March 2019 HK$0.50 800,000
BeEt “ERNAFEARA=ZTHE 0.503% 7T 800,000
—E-AF=ZA=t+NAH
23 March 2010 to 22 March 2015 HK$1.12 1,563,380
—_E-FEF=ZRF=Z+=HZE 1,128 7T 1,563,380
—ZE-RF=ZFZ+=H
Mr. Weng Jiaxing 23 March 2010 to 22 March 2015 HK$1.12 1,980,282
HnELE —E-ZTHF=ZRB=-+=HE 1128 T 1,980,282
—E-AFE=A=+=H
Mr. Zheng Gang 30 September 2009 to 29 March 2019 HK$0.50 800,000
ERE S —EENFNAR=+RE 0.50% T 800,000
—E-NAF=ZA=1+ANAH
23 March 2010 to 22 March 2015 HK$1.12 2,814,084
—E-FEF=ZF=-+=HZE 1.1278 7T 2,814,084

—E-HAFE=A=+=H
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Number of
share options

outstanding

Categories of grantees Exercise period Exercise price HRITHEZ
KA TER fTHERE WEEsE
Directors
EE
Dr. Huang Jiaging 30 September 2009 to 29 March 2014 HK$0.50 1,000,000
EMEEL —EENFNA=TRE 0.50% 7T 1,000,000
—E-ME=ZA=+NAH
23 March 2010 to 22 March 2015 HK$1.12 312,676
TE-ZHFZA-+=HE 1128 7T 312,676
—E-HFE=A=+=H
Mr. Chen Jin Shan 30 September 2009 to 29 March 2019 HK$0.50 1,700,000
BR& Lkt —EREAFAR=TRE 0.50% T 1,700,000
—E-hEFE=ZA=+NAH
23 March 2010 to 22 March 2015 HK$1.12 2,084,507
—E-ZHF=ZRB=+Z=ZHE 11258 7T 2,084,507
—E-RAFE=ZA=+=H
Employees and consultants 13 July 2006 to 12 July 2016 HK$3.61 1,149,346
of the Group
rEBRERER “EEXRFLtATZHE 3.618T 1,149,346
—E-R"¥tAt+=H
21 March 2007 to 20 March 2017 HK$2.94 2,171,361
—EELF=ZA=+—-RE 2948 7T 2,171,361
—E-—tH=ZA=+H
30 September 2009 to 29 March 2014 HK$0.50 8,420,000
“ERAFARZ=TRE 0.50/8 7T 8,420,000
—E-mE=ZA=tANA
23 March 2010 to 22 March 2015 HK$1.12 20,063,380
—E-ZEHF=ZHA-+=HE 1128 7T 20,063,380
—E-haf¥=A=+=H
Total #5t

46,559,016
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There were no contracts of significance to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SHARES

During the year ended 31 March 2011, there were no purchases,
sales or redemptions of the Company’s listed securities by the

Company or any of its subsidiaries.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on

a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
minority interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited financial statements and restated as
appropriate, is set out on page 164. This summary does not form

part of the audited financial statements.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the directors and management shareholders (as defined
in the GEM Listing Rules), and their respective associates had any
interest in business which competes or may compete with the
business of the Group, or have or may have any other conflicts of

interest with the Group pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

AUDITORS

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2011 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng who
will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and being

eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

On behalf of the Board

Yung Kwok Leong
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 27 June 2011
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B H# & # & F % 5

Hodgson Impey Cheng

HLB

Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hua Xia
Healthcare Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 44 to
163, which comprise the consolidated and company statements
of financial position as at 31 March 2011, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting

policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

B A% BUAT RS

31/F, Gloucester Tower BB
The Landmark IR
11 Pedder Street, Central ZITHI19%
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Independent Auditors’ Report
BYREMEE

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
BB RS

OPINION ER
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true EZFLH BEUNBHRRCEEEEMBER
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the pi- 4=l m

Group as at 31 March 2011 and of the Group's profit and cash “E-—F=ZA=+—HZEBERIR &
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong BEEREZZALEFEZZIRASRE  TEi%
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared BEBATGIZHBEREZEZHH -

in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng B St EHHR

Chartered Accountants RIS E T

Certified Public Accountants EBYESIM

Hong Kong, 27 June 2011 58 ZE-—FXAZ++tH

ZEEREEARLFT 43
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e AR &

At 31 March 2011 R=2——F=A=+—H

2011 2010
—E——% —E-ZF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
M &E TET FHE T
ASSETS gE
Non-current assets FERENEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 6 31,438 43,438
Prepaid lease payments FEAEERE 7 32,551 32,268
Investment properties REWE 8 6,045 5,586
Goodwill [EES 10 788,068 788,068
858,102 869,360
Current assets ) EE
Inventories 7E 13 110,204 95,154
Trade and other receivables and ESREMELW
deposits RERZE 14 314,949 241,136
Derivative financial instruments TTESMI A 15 432 96
Pledged bank deposits BIKIFRITER 13,809 17,274
Cash and bank balances BE RIBITEE 9 77,227 59,712
516,621 413,372
Total assets BE#E 1,374,723 1,282,732
EQUITY ga
Capital and reserves attributable ELFHER ARG
to the owners of the Company BE R
Share capital i 16 591,219 466,423
Reserves & 245,773 237,561
836,992 703,984
Non-controlling interests FEERER 39,706 32,858
Total equity aWE 876,698 736,842
A4 Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2010/2011



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A MR R

At 31 March 2011 A=2——F=A=+—H

2011 2010
—E——%f —E-FF
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
M &E TET FHE T
LIABILITIES &8
Current liabilities g =R
Trade and other payables B R EMENFIE 18 240,221 250,748
Bank borrowings RITEE 19 49,194 47,310
Amounts due to non-controlling B EERRR 2
shareholders RIE 20 551 719
Tax payable FE A+ 518 9,309 2,254
299,275 301,031
Non-current liabilities ERBAR
Promissory note AHEE 22 194,183 240,482
Convertible note iR EE 21 3,969 3,741
Deferred taxation EER I 35 598 636
198,750 244,859
Total liabilities EE#E 498,025 545,890
Total equity and liabilities HeERARBET 1,374,723 1,282,732
Net current assets RDEESE 217,346 112,341
Total assets less current liabilities BERERTDAR 1,075,448 981,701

Approved by the Board of Directors on 27 June 2011 and signed

on its behalf by:

Yung Kwok Leong
Director

Jiang Tao
Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position

8 3% K R R

At 31 March 2011 R=2——F=A=+—H

2011 2010
—E——% —E-ZF
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
M &E TET FHE T
ASSETS HE
Non-current assets ERENEE
Interests in subsidiaries NI ENGI P £ 12 108,690 112,100
Current assets i BN’ E
Other receivables and H{th B W Fh T8 K
deposits b 14 294 382
Derivative financial instruments fTEEmI A 15 432 96
Cash and bank balances ReRIBITEER 3,856 14,645
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEW KT B~ Bl I8 12 888,996 847,859
893,578 862,982
Total assets EEHRE 1,002,268 975,082
EQUITY e
Capital and reserves attributable EATIEEA
to the owners of the Company BEEER S
Share capital g A% 16 591,219 466,423
Reserves i 17 188,353 233,716
Total equity amE 779,572 700,139
LIABILITIES &f®
Current liabilities nBAE
Accruals and other payables BB R R HMESRIE 1,696 4,400
Financial guarantee contract BREREHN - 3,410
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAS B A R IE 12 22,250 22,274
23,946 30,084

Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2010/2011



Statement of Financial Position
B 7% AR R 3R

At 31 March 2011 A=2——F=A=+—H

2011 2010
—E——%f —E-FF
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BT R TET FHE T

Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Promissory note AL ERE 22 194,183 240,482
Convertible note R E 21 3,969 3,741
Deferred taxation ERER I8 35 598 636
198,750 244,859
Total liabilities AfREETE 222,696 274,943
Total equity and liabilities BERARHEE 1,002,268 975,082
Net current assets M EERE 869,632 832,898
Total assets less current liabilities BEMERTHAER 978,322 944,998

Approved by the Board of Directors on 27 June 2011 and signed R-E——FAA-ttEHHESEHE I

on its behalf by: HTIHEERREE
Yung Kwok Leong Jiang Tao EE EE
Director Director BER BE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial BEMIFIRE B A HREK 2 —2pD °
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

GETHESR

For the year ended 31 March 2011 BZ=Z——

F=A=t—-HLFE

2011 2010
—E——%F —E-EF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
M = T#&T FHET

Turnover BEH 24 1,490,868 179,765
Cost of sales HERSE (1,301,278) (115,381)
Gross profit EX 189,590 64,384
Other revenue Hak & 24 10,611 1,337
Other income Hfthir A 25 733 461
Selling and distribution expenses HERSHER (60,498) (22,277)
Administrative expenses TTHRAX (61,451) (52,914)
Impairment loss on goodwill 8 EH R = (171,422)
Loss on early redemption of REBERARTE

promissory note ZBR (9.681) -
Gain/(loss) on disposal of HEMBARZ

subsidiaries k& (BR) 34 955 (23,185)
Profit/(loss) from operations BEEEBRT (BR) 25 70,259 (203,616)
Finance costs MEEA 28 (11,508) (1,297)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRWREEH (5iE) 58,751 (204,913)
Taxation RE 29 (21,541) (1,723)
Profit/(loss) for the year TEFERH (R 37,210 (206,636)
Other comprehensive income/(loss), HiZEKEA ~(Fi&) -

net of tax HBRRE
Exchange differences on translating #WEBIMEE R

foreign operations CERES 9,548 (201)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) HFEEHEM2EKRA

for the year, net of tax (E518) » MIRRM 1\ 9,548 (201)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FEE2XEKRA ~

for the year (B1R) B8 46,758 (206,837)
Dividends BR 32 - -

Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited

Annual

Report 2010/2011



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

= = 22
mETHERER
For the year ended 31 March 2011 BZ=F——F=A=+—HIFE
2011 2010
—Z2——% —E-EF
Notes HK$' 000 HK$'000
M &E T#T FET
Profit/(loss) attributable to: EERF(858) :
Owners of the Company ERFHEA 31,456 (211,283)
Non-controlling interests FERER 5,754 4,647
37,210 (206,636)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FEE2EIA ~(EE)
attributable to: .5
Owners of the Company ELFHWEA 39,408 (211,456)
Non-controlling interests JEERER 7,350 4,619
46,758 (206,837)
Earnings/(loss) per share attributable Z 2 G858 A FE {4
to the owners of the Company |RET (HH)
— basic —ER 31  HK3.03 cents#fll  HK(43.50) centsiE 1l
(restated) (&%)
— diluted -8 31  HK3.01centsi#fll  HK(43.50) centsis il
(restated) (B E %)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BEM M sE B ARG EMEHRR 22— °

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GERERBER

For the year ended 31 March 2011 BiZE—Z——F=A=+—HIFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

FOTRAARY
(Accumulated
Share-based  Convertible losses)/ Non-
Share Share Special Translation ~ payment note  Statutory retained Sub  controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve rﬁerve reserve reserve profits total interests equity
kit
BERC  THER (RHER)/ FAR
k% BRER HHURE ERER AREE  RERE  EERRE  REEH it & Haew
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tén TErn  TErn  fEr fEr  TEx  TEx  TEn  TEn  TER  TéEn
(Note (@) (Note (b))
GEE) (k)
At 1 April 2009 RZESAEMA-A 224,756 335,267 (6,735) 7899 4,658 4,448 1287 (4375) 321833 28239 356,062
Eichange difference on translation ~~ BESAHEAR
of financial statements of HRERELL
overseas subsidiaries ERZR - - - (173) - - - - (173) (29) (201)
Net income recognised directly EREERRIL
in equity WARS - - - (173) - = = - (173) (28) (201)
Loss for the year REERE = - - - - - - 1283 (11,283 4647 (206,636)
Total comprehensive (oss)income ~~ AEE27E (HE) /
for the year o8t = - - (173) - - - (1,283 (211,456) 4619 (206,837)
Release upon disposal of RUERBARR
subsidiaries ik = = = (537) = = = = (537) = (537)
Issue of share option LrRRE - - - - 5,617 - - - 5,617 - 5,617
Equity component of convertible TRRZEZERTR
note - - - - - (1,410 = 4,448 3,038 - 3,038
Deferred tax related to convertble ~~ EARKZEREZ
note EERE - - - - - (501) - - (501) - (501)
Share options cancelled HHERE - - - - (4,045) - - 4045 - = =
Issue of convertible preference RITRRELR
shares 241,667 338333 - - - - - - 580,000 - 580,000
At31 March 2010 and R-2-FE=f=1-8
1 April 2010 k=%-%£mA-A 466,423 673,600 (6,735) 7,189 6,230 2,531 1287 (446547) 703984 32,858 736,842
Buchange difference on translation ~~ RESAKEAT
of financial statements of HRRREEL
overseas subsidiaries ERZE - - - 7952 - - - - 195 1,5% 9,548
Net income recognised directly ERTERRIZ
inequiy BASE - - - Im - - - SIm 1% 958
Profit for the year REERF - - - - - - - 31,456 31,456 5,754 37,210
Total comprehensive income REEREANALE
for the year - - - 7952 - - - 31,456 39,408 7,350 46,758
Release upon disposal of REERBAR®
subsidiaries Bh - - - (30) - = = - 30) (502) (532)
Adjustment on right issue of shares R TRBRAER 1833 (483%) - - - - - - - - -
Exercise of shares options TEERE 1,290 304 - - (344) - - - 1,290 = 1,290
Issue of share options LRRE - - - - 5,981 - - - 5,981 - 5,981
Share options cancelled HHERE - - - - (66) - - 66 = = =
Issue of right shares LitRRG 75,173 18,041 - - - - - - B - B3
Transfer to statutory reserve BR2LERR - - - - - - 5,871 (5871) - = =
Expenses related to ssue of BRETtRRG
right shares Fx - (6,855) - - - - - - (6,855) = (6,855)
Share premium cancellation HERHRE - (M6547) - - - - - g5 - - -
At 31 March 2011 RZZ——-£ZR=+-0 59119 190,250 (6,735) 15111 11,801 2,531 7158 25,651 836,992 39,706 876,698

Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited

Annual

Report 2010/2011



Notes:

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REREZEHR

For the year ended 31 March 2011 BZ=F——F=A=+—HIFE

Included in the special reserve amounting to approximately
HK$2,935,000 of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal amount of the shares issued by the Company and the
aggregate amount of the share capital of a subsidiary acquired

pursuant to a group reorganisation in 2001.

The decrease in special reserve amounting to approximately
HK$41,580,000 of the Group represents the difference between
the fair value and the contracted value of consideration shares
paid for acquisition of subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March
2007.

The increase in special reserve amounting to approximately
HK$31,910,000 of the Group represents the difference between
the fair value and the contracted value of consideration shares
paid for acquisition of subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March
2008.

As stipulated by the relevant PRC laws and regulations, the
subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC shall set
aside 10% of its net profit after taxation for the statutory surplus
reserve fund (except where the reserve balance has reached 50%
of the subsidiaries’ paid-up capital). The reserve fund can only be
used, upon approval by the board of directors and by the relevant

authority, to offset accumulated losses or increase capital.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

i H#
ko

M -

Bt AREE 2555l % #492,935,00058 T
AAFBTZROEEER_"SZ—FET
SEBARKAMKE -—RHEBARRALEZ
EH o

REE 255 RIRER A 441,580,000 7T
BLESEEERBE_SSLE=A=1+—
BLEFERUBHBARZERNRER®DZ
AFEEYNEERZZHE -

REE 2RI FAEIEN4931,910,000/8 7T
EMEBRRERBE_ZENF=ZA=1+—
FEFERNRENRBLRZENRERDZ
NFPEENEEBZEHE -

RIBPEMEEER - RO 24 AR
BRARIABEI0RGRBEMARNABEEAE
T (BRIFLEECEEMBLARAHRERZ
50%) - FEEERAEEERMER  EE
NRTETAFERERTBRIBMER -

B ERA GRS M BHRR 2 —8HD -

51



52

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GEREREBR

For the year ended 31 March 2011 BZ=-Z——F=A=1+—HILFE

2011 2010
—E——% —E-ZF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FHET THET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES #EEXEBZHERE
Profit/(loss) before taxation BREADER (BE) 58,751 (204,913)
Adjustments for: FHEIFHE
Interest income B U A (3,540) (532)
Interest expenses FEBEX 11,508 1,297
Impairment loss on goodwill BEREEE - 171,422
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments FENHEERIEEH 1,143 977
Depreciation of property, plant and ME-BER
equipment HREITE 11,188 11,200
Fair value change of investment properties REMEALATFEEZE (231) =
Fair value change of derivative financial TEemMIAEATE
instruments 2E (336) (93)
Loss on early redemption of promissory note REEREALEEZEE 9,681 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HENE BER
equipment HEzEE 157 28
(Gain)/loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEKB AT Z (KR) Hia (955) 23,185
Provision for impairment loss of trade and B R HEMERRIE
other receivables B E B R 1,882 489
Reversal of provision for impairment loss E 5 & H fth & W SR IE R E
of trade and other receivables EE R AR E (166) =
Share-based payment expenses DR AER 2 NREAX 5,981 5,617
Operating cash inflows before movements EEESEHA
in working capital REBFSR/A 95,063 8,677
Increase in inventories FEEM (15,595) (2,947)
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 R HEMEWRIE
and deposits Rz g (81,775) (29,674)
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5K H A ENFRIER D (3.321) (17,154)
(Dearease)/increase in amounts due to FEAFFEIE IR IR R 2 FRIE
non-controlling shareholders GR) /a0 (168) 255
Net cash used in operations XBEARESFE (5.796) (40,843)
Compensation received from vendors BEELREZHE - 7,764
Overseas tax paid 28 INEIIE (14,524) (1,906)
Net cash used in operating activities REXBHAARESFRE (20,320) (34,985)

Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited

Annual

Report 2010/2011



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2011 B@Z=—Z——F=A=1+—HIFE

2011 2010
—E——% —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$' 000
THET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES ¥BBEEFHZHLRKE
Interest received 2 WF & 3,540 532
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE BERZE (4,388) (7,401)
Net cash outflow from acquisition of KEHBAR ZEE
subsidiaries R AR - (699)
Net cash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries HENBARZREERAFLE 5,584 5,484
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEVE BENRRE
and equipment g e 655 555
Net cash generated from/(used in) BRETEBRE(FA)
investing activities HEFE 5,391 (1,529)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BREZBHZRELRE
Interest paid 2FAE (7,260) (47)
Proceeds from issue of right shares BATHAR IR 17 P18 7R IB 93,214 =
Issue right shares expenses BITHERMO ZBHX (6,855) =
Decrease in pledged bank deposits 2R RITEFEROR D 3,465 2,076
Redemption of promissory note fE &N R (60,000) -
Proceeds from exercise of share options THEBREZMSMNIE 1,290 -
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITIERFTERIE 76,458 6,270
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITER (73,530) =
Net cash generated from financing activities RMEETEEREFRE 26,782 8,299
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and HReRASSEEHEM
cash equivalents (iKD)BEE 11,853 (28,215)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FMZReRTE&EETRA
beginning of the year 59,712 88,506
Effect of foreign currency exchange rate IIBEZRBE 2 HE
changes 5,662 (579)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FRZUGRBSFERA
end of the year 77,227 59,712
Analysis of the balances of cash and HeRB&FHER
cash equivalents EERaw
Cash and bank balances ReRIBITHEE 77,227 59,712
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BEMIMIE B AR E KRz 2 —HB D °

consolidated financial statements.

EEEEEERBEBRDA
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R M R

31 March 2011 =&2——F=A=+—H

54

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 28 May 2001 as an exempted company with limited
liability. The shares of the Company are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The registered office
of the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681 GT George Town, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands. The head office and principal place of business of
the Company in Hong Kong is located at 19/F., New Wing,
101 King's Road, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the functional currency of the

Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company while
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision
of general hospital services, healthcare and hospital
management services and pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution and pharmaceutical retail chain business in the
PRC.
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AXRAAR-ZBE-FHAA=-t+NBE
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BR2E (TBXA] ABIZEMR ([8%
#w]) £ o AR B FEM S E R Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
GT George Town, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1111, Cayman lIslands ° 7R 8] Z #8 #$ =
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T2 e

AARB-—BREZRDF - MEKE
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MR R - BRKEREERE - UK
BEYHBRDEREUAREN T ERH
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APPLICATION

Notes to the Financial Statements

OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following

new and revised standards, amendments and interpretations

issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountant (the “HKICPA").

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRS1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)
HKAS 28

(as revised in 2008)
HKAS 32 (Amendment)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)
HK(IFRIC) - Int 17

HK - Int 5

Amendments to HKFRS 1 to HKFRS 5 as a part
of Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2008

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009

Additional Exemptions for First-time Adopters

Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment

Transactions

Business Combinations
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

Investment in Associates

Classification of Right Issues
Eligible Hedged Items

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners

Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on Demand

Clause
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - continued
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment

— Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment
Transactions

The application of these new and revised standards and
interpretations has not had any material impact on the
amounts reported for the current and prior years but
may affect the accounting for future transactions or
arrangements. The impact of the application of the new and

revised standards and interpretations is discussed below.

The amendments clarify the scope of HKFRS 2, as well
as the accounting for group cash-settled share-based
payment transactions in the separate (or individual) financial
statements of an entity receiving the goods or services when
another group entity or shareholder has the obligation to

settle the award.

HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) Business
Combinations

HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) has been applied in the current
year prospectively to business combinations of which the
acquisition date is on or after 1 January 2010 in accordance
with the relevant transitional provisions. Its application has
affected the accounting for business combinations in the

current year.

The impact of the application of HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008)

is as follows:

(i)  HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) allows a choice on a
transaction-by-transaction basis for the measurement
of non-controlling interests at the date of acquisition
(previously referred to as ‘minority’ interests) either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ share of

recognised identifiable net assets of the acquiree.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") — continued

HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) Business
Combinations - continued
(ii)

(iii)

HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) changes the recognition
and subsequent accounting requirements for
contingent consideration. Previously contingent
consideration was recognised at the acquisition date
only if payment of the contingent consideration
was probable and it could be measured reliably;
any subsequent adjustments to the contingent
consideration were always made against the cost
of the acquisition. Under the revised standard,
contingent consideration is measured at fair value
at the acquisition date; subsequent adjustments to
the consideration are recognised against the cost of
acquisition only to the extent that they arise from new
information obtained within the measurement period
(@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date)
about the fair value at the acquisition date. All other
subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in

profit or loss.

HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) requires the recognition
of a settlement gain or loss when the business
combination in effect settles a pre-existing relationship
between the Group and the acquiree. HKFRS 3 (as
revised in 2008) requires acquisition-related costs
to be accounted for separately from the business
combination, generally leading to those costs being
recognised as an expense in profit or loss as incurred,
whereas previously they were accounted for as part of

the cost of the acquisition.

2.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") — continued

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements (as part of Improvements to HKFRSs
issued in 2009)

The amendments to HKAS 1 clarify that the potential
settlement of a liability by the issue of equity is not relevant

to its classification as current or non-current.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows
(as part of Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
2009)

The amendments to HKAS 7 specify that only expenditures
that result in a recognised asset in the statement of financial
position can be classified as investing activities in the

statement of cash flows.

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008) Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements

The application of HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008) has resulted
in changes in the Group’s accounting policies for the
Group's changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries of the

Group.

Specifically, the revised standard has affected the Group’s
accounting policies regarding changes in the Group's
ownership interests in its subsidiaries that do not result in
loss of control. In prior years, in the absence of specific
requirements in HKFRSs, increases in interests in existing
subsidiaries were treated in the same manner as the
acquisition of subsidiaries, with goodwill or a bargain
purchase gain being recognised, when appropriate; for
decreases in interests in existing subsidiaries that did
not involve a loss of control, the difference between the
consideration received and the adjustment to the non-
controlling interests was recognised in profit or loss. Under
HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008), all such increases or decreases
are dealt with in equity, with no impact on goodwill or profit

or loss.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") - continued

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008) Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements - continued

When control of a subsidiary is lost as a result of a
transaction, event or other circumstance, the revised
standard requires the Group to derecognise all assets,
liabilities and non-controlling interests at their carrying
amounts and to recognise the fair value of the consideration
received. Any retained interest in the former subsidiary is
recognised at its fair value at the date control is lost. The
resulting difference is recognised as a gain or loss in profit or

loss.

These changes have been applied prospectively from
1 January 2010 in accordance with the relevant transitional

provisions.

In addition, under HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008), the
definition of non-controlling interests has been changed.
Specifically, under the revised standard, non-controlling
interests is defined as the equity in a subsidiary not

attributable, directly or indirectly, to a parent.

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of
Financial Statements - Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause ('"HK Int 5)
clarifies that term loans that include a clause that gives the
lender the unconditional right to call the loans at any time
(‘repayment on demand clause’) should be classified by the
borrower as current liabilities. The Group has applied HK
Int 5 for the first time in the current year. HK Int 5 requires

retrospective application.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of
Financial Statements - Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause - continued

In order to comply with the requirements set out in HK Int 5,
the Group has changed its accounting policy on classification
of term loans with a repayment on demand clause. In the
past, the classification of such term loans were determined
based on the agreed scheduled repayment dates set out
in the loan agreements. Under HK Int 5, term loans with
a repayment on demand clause are classified as current
liabilities. The application of HK Int 5 has had no material
impact on the amounts reported for the current and prior

years.

HK (IFRIC) - Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash
Assets to Owners

The Interpretation provides guidance on the appropriate
accounting treatment when an entity distributes assets other

than cash as dividends to its shareholders.

Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009

Except for the amendments to HKAS 1, HKAS 7 and HKAS
17 as described earlier, the application of Improvements to
HKFRSs issued in 2009 has not had any material effect on

amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) — continued

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards, amendments and interpretations that have
been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKAS 12 (Amendments)

HKAS 24 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13
HK(IFRIC) - Int 14

(Amendment)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 19

Improvements to HKFRSs issued
in 2010!

Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets®

Related Party Disclosures?

Separate Financial Statements®

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures®

Limited Exemption from Comparative
HKFRS 7 — Disclosures for First-time
Adopters?

Severe Hyperinflation and Removal
of Fixed Dates for First-time
Adopters*

Disclosure — Transfer of
Financial Assets*

Financial Instruments®

Consolidated Financial Statements®

Joint Arrangements®

Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities®

Fair Value Measurement®

Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement?

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
with Equity Instruments?
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") — continued

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial assets
and will be effective from 1 January 2013, with earlier
application permitted. The standard requires all recognised
financial assets that are within the scope of HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
to be measured at either amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that (i) are held within a
business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows and (ii) have contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost. All
other debt investments and equity investments are measured
at fair value. The application of HKFRS 9 will affect the
classification and measurement of the Group’s financial

assets.

Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are subsequently measured at either amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent accounting

periods.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") — continued

In relation to financial liabilities, the significant change
relates to financial liabilities that are designated as at fair
value through profit or loss. Specifically, under HKFRS 9,
for financial liabilities that are designated as at fair value
through profit or loss, the amount of change in presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the presentation
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are not

subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 9 that will be adopted in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual
period beginning 1 April 2013 and that the application of
the new standard may have a significant impact on amounts
reported in respect of the Groups’ financial assets. However,
it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that

effect until a detailed review has been completed.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfer of
Financial Assets interest the disclosure requirements for
transactions involving transfers of financial assets. These
amendments are intended to provide greater transparency
around risk exposures when a financial asset is transferred
but the transferor retains some level continuing exposure
in the asset. The amendments also require disclosures
when transfers of financial assets are not evenly distributed

throughout the period.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
The directors of the Company anticipate that the application

of the other new and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations will have no material impact on the results

and the financial position of the Group.

HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures (as revised in 2009)
modifies the definition of a related party and simplifies

disclosures for government-related entities.

The disclosure exemptions introduced in HKAS 24 (as revised
in 2009) do not affect the Group because the Group is not
a government-related entity. However, disclosures regarding
related party transactions and balances in these consolidated
financial statements may be affected when the revised
version of the standard is applied in future accounting
periods because some counterparties that did not previously
meet the definition of a related party may come within the

scope of the standard.

HK(IFRIC) — Int 19 provides guidance regarding the
accounting for the extinguishment of a financial liability by
the issue of equity instruments. To date, the Group has not
entered into transactions of this nature. However, if the
Group does enter into any such transactions in the future,
HK(FRIC) — Int 19 will affect the required accounting. In
particular, under HK(IFRIC) — Int 19, equity instruments
issued under such arrangements will be measured at their
fair value, and any difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability extinguished and the fair value of

equity instruments issued will be recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"),
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong

which is a collective term that includes all

Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
(the “Interpretations”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the applicable disclosure requirements of the
GEM Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing
Rules”).

A summary of significant accounting policies followed by the
Group and the Company in the preparation of the financial

statements is set out below:

Basis of preparation

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is historical cost except
for certain financial assets (including derivative financial
instruments), financial liabilities and investment properties
that are measured at fair value, as explained in the

accounting policies set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
special purpose entities) controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has
the power to govern the financial and operating policies of

an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

3.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES - continued

Basis of consolidation — continued

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition

and up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses

are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented

separately from the Group's equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-controlling
interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. Prior to 1 January 2010,
losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in excess
of the non-controlling interests in the subsidiary’s equity
were allocated against the interests of the Group except to
the extent that the non-controlling interests had a binding
obligation and were able to make an additional investment

to cover the losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES - continued
Basis of consolidation — continued

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries on or after 1 January 2010

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to

owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interests. Where certain assets of the subsidiary
are measured at revalued amounts or fair values and the
related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity,
the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are accounted for as if
the Company had directly disposed of the related assets (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained
earnings). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement or, when applicable, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a

jointly controlled entity.
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Basis of consolidation — continued
Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
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subsidiaries prior to 1 January 2010
Increases in interests in existing subsidiaries were treated
in the same manner as the acquisition of subsidiaries, with
goodwill or a bargain purchase gain being recognised
where appropriate. For decreases in interests in subsidiaries,
regardless of whether the disposals would result in the
Group losing control over the subsidiaries, the difference
between the consideration received and the adjustment to IERERMES o
the non-controlling interests was recognised in profit or loss.
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Business combinations
Business combinations that took place on or after 1 January

2010
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a

business combination is measured at fair value, which is

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of

b
‘ the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition related costs are generally recognised
RULES B 5B - P Uk B8 A9 O 58 B & 2 I P
ENEEDRKREEREATEER
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ZHEBANEEREEDAIRES
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in profit or loss as incurred.
At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at
the acquisition date, except that:

(iy deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or (i)
assets related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS

12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits

=,

respectively;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Business combinations - continued

Business combinations that took place on or after 1 January

2010 - continued

(i) liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment transactions of the acquiree or the
replacement of an acquiree’s share-based payment
transactions with share-based payment transactions of
the Group are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2

Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

(iii) assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are

measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as

a bargain purchase gain.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Business combinations - continued

Business combinations that took place on or after 1 January
2010 - continued

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may
be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are
measured at their fair value or another measurement basis

required by another standard.

Where the consideration the Group transfers in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and considered as part of the consideration transferred
in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of
the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments being made against goodwill or

gain on bargain purchase.

Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that
arise from additional information obtained during the
measurement period about facts and circumstances that
existed as of the acquisition date. Measurement period does

not exceed one year from the acquisition date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Business combinations - continued

Business combinations that took place on or after 1 January
2010 — continued

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify
as measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39, or
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment
would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

Changes in the value of the previously held equity interest
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity before the acquisition date are reclassified to profit
or loss when the Group obtains control over the acquiree.
If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date
that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised
as of that date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Business combinations - continued

Business combinations that took place prior to 1 January
2010

Acquisition of businesses was accounted for using the
purchase method. The cost of the acquisition was measured
at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange,
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the
business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities that met the relevant
conditions for recognition were generally recognised at their

fair value at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition was recognised as an asset
and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
cost of the acquisition over the Group's interest in the
recognised amounts of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities recognised. If, after assessment,
the Group’s interest in the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities exceeded the cost of the acquisition, the excess

was recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The non-controlling interests in the acquiree were initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities of the acquiree. Contingent
consideration was recognised, if and only if, the contingent
consideration was probable and could be measured reliably.
Subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration were
recognised against the cost of the acquisition. Business
combinations achieved in stages were accounted for as

separate steps.

Goodwill was determined at each step. Any additional

acquisition did not affect the previously recognised goodwill.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES - continued

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and
is presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. An impairment loss recognised for

goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is a company in which the Company, directly
or indirectly, controls more than one half of the voting
power; has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies; to appoint or remove the majority of the members
of the board of directors; or to cast majority of votes at the
meetings of the board of directors.

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of financial position at cost less any impairment
loss. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Revenue recognition

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyers, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over the

goods sold.

Revenue from provision of hospital service, healthcare and
hospital management service is recognised when the services

are provided.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using effective interest method. When a receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash
flows discounted at original effective interest rate of
the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount
as interest income. Interest income on impaired loans is

recognised using the original effective interest rate.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the leases transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line

basis over the lease term.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES - continued

Leasing - continued

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance assets are recognised as assets
of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the
lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor
is included in the consolidated statement of financial
position as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the
lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges
are charged directly to the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

Rental payable under operating leases are charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into
an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental

expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after the property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that
the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future
economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use
of the property, plant and equipment, the expenditure is

capitalised as an additional cost of that asset.
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POLICIES - continued

Property, plant and equipment - continued

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment, using the straight line method, over
their estimated useful lives. The principal annual rates are as

follows:

Building Over the lease terms
Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms
Plant and machinery 20%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20% to 33'3%
Motor vehicles 20%

Office equipment 20%

The gain or loss arising from disposal of an asset is
determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and,
where applicable, other costs that have been incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition, is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less all estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of receivables. The amount of the provision is
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the effective interest rate. The amount of the provision is
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES - continued

Impairment of assets (other than goodwill,
intangible assets with indefinite lives)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable
amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an

expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an

impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable and deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Taxation — continued

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the
balance sheet liabilities method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences, and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of the other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit

nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to consolidated
statement of comprehensive income except when it relates
to items charged or credited directly or equity, in which case

the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

3.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES - continued
Taxation — continued

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the entity intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities

on a net basis.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. All regular
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace. The accounting
policies adopted in respect of each category of financial

assets are set out below.

3.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. At the end of each reporting period
subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses. An impairment loss
is recognised in consolidated statement of comprehensive
income when there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, and is measured as the difference between
the assets’ carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate. Impairment losses are reversed
in subsequent periods when an increase in the asset's
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses were recognised,
subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment losses reversed do not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment losses not been recognised.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as any of the other
categories under HKAS 39. At the end of each reporting
period subsequent to initial recognition, available-for-sale
financial assets are measured at fair value. Changes in fair
value are recognised in equity, until the financial asset is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity
is removed from equity and recognised in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. Any impairment
losses on available-for-sale financial assets are recognised
in consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments

will not be reversed in subsequent years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued
Financial assets — continued
Available-for-sale financial assets — continued

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured, are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting
period subsequent to initial recognition. An impairment loss
is recognised in consolidated statement of comprehensive
income when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired. The amount of the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the carrying amount of the asset
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment losses will not be reversed
in subsequent years.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are
generally classified into other financial liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted in respect of financial liabilities
and equity instruments are set out below.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Convertible note

Convertible note issued by the Company that contain both
financial liability and equity components are classified
separately in respective liability and equity components
on initial recognition. On initial recognition, the fair
value of the liability component is determined using the
prevailing market interest of similar non-convertible debts.
The difference between the proceeds of the issue of the
convertible note and the fair value assigned to the liability
component, respecting the embedded call option for the
holder to convert the bond into equity, is included in equity
(convertible note reserve).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial liabilities and equity - continued

Convertible note — continued

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible note is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component,
represented by the option to convert the liability component
into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in
convertible note reserve until the embedded option is
exercised (in which case the balance stated in convertible
note reserve will be transferred to share capital and share
premium). Where the option remains unexercised at the
expiry date, the balance stated in convertible note reserve
will be released to the retained profits. No gain or loss is
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income upon conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
note are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the proceeds. Transactions
costs relating to the equity component are charged directly
to convertible note reserve. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period of the

convertible note using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at

the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the original or
modified terms of debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract issued by the Company and not designed as at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised initially at its fair
value less transaction costs that are directly attributable to

the issue of the financial guarantee contract.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets
are transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities are removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid or payable is recognised in consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEgHHREFEHE-&
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POLICIES - continued

Foreign currencies

I

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the companies now comprising the Group are
measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the company operates (the
“functional currency”). The combined financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which
is the functional and presentation currency of the

Company and the Group.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities are reported as part of their fair

value gain or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES - continued

FEEMHBRBE &

SUR

currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency

as follows:

(@) Assets and liabilities are translated at the closing

rate;

(b) Income and expenses are translated at average

exchange rates; and

(c)  All resulting exchange differences are recognised

as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign
operations, and of borrowings and other currency
instruments designated as hedges of such investments,
are taken to owners’ equity. When a foreign operation
is sold, exchange differences that were recorded in
equity are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as part of the gain or loss on

sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the

closing rate.

Foreign currencies — continued 5hE — iR

iii.  Group companies ii.  ZFEER A
The results and financial positions of all the companies e EMEHEINERTE 2B AlA
now comprising the Group (none of which has the AAEEzA A (R BEEMHBER

IRACHER 2 EH) 2 RERMBOR
MPBUATHEBRERZIEE -

ERESEH Y HERBR

o ms

(b) WAKRBXERSEFHER
mE R

(0 FERLKMELZERZHER
BRAEDZ—EHIE-

RESRER  BEMEIIES
LR EEEREMAESPZRE
ZEBTAZREFEMELZE
REBFNRARREZAN - BEHE
BHNEKBE  ZEAZERGSR
HESRPHEIABHERENER

2%

WERRIEBRRELECHERAF
BERARDERZRNERBZEER
BERE  YRRTERKRE -

85



86

Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 7% 3R 3= B &

31 March 2011 =2——F=A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES - continued

Current assets and liabilities

Current assets are expected to be realised within twelve
months of the end of the reporting period or in the normal
course of the Group’s operating cycle. Current liabilities are
expected to be settled within twelve months of the end of
the reporting period or in the normal course of the Group’s
operating cycle.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events that
is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably. A contingent
liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then be
recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually
certain, an asset is recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash in hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within
three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

3.

FEEMHBRBE &

nBRERAR

RBEERMRGEEREITT-EAR
FRAEEEERR 2 —RBEPEE -
RBARERAAREEIES T -EAR
FRAEEEERR 2 —RBEPEN -

BRARARRAARRE
FAREERERACBENSHM S E
MEF UEEEARE -—RISZZRE
HEERETERER  MAKEL TE
TEREGELERRBEHAEEER - IR
EETUREREERENEMHCIBESE
MEE BEHRAUERAFTERREEE
B REEEERENEHEEMRE
AR - IRBBETERER - ESEHH
BRMEARE - REBREFRN TR
MRXEMEFHBREREREK  KES
BREREISEE -

FREEREECRENSHMATEE
ENEE  BEEEARE -—RIAZRK
REASERETERR MAKEL
THETE2EFELERREAEEER -
FREETEWER  BERTEEKRE
BB FENBRRMEARE - &
BEREAWIKERER EEFE
T LUARERR o

HeRBASFERH
BEREHRERERMS RERRESE
BHEBEEFERSRBAFR UK
28 REMBS - THERREACAE
R  BEEZDARRE  MABRR
B(-—REBAZ=ZMBANURN) 2RE -
NEZEABAEEZRITES  HBX
AEEREEBERZ—BH -

Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2010/2011



SUR

Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Provisions
A provision is recognised when the Group has a present

legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event

and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be

required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate

can be made of the amount of the obligation. Where the

effect of the time value of money is material, the amount of

a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting

period of the expenditures expected to be required to settle

the obligation.

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, leave
passage and the cost to the Group of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the period in which the
associated services are rendered by employees of the
Group. Where payment or settlement is deferred and
the effect would be material, these amounts are stated

at their present values.

Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds as
required under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance and to the state-managed
retirement benefits schemes for the employees of the
Group's overseas entities are recognised as an expense
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income as incurred.

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result
of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal

plan which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

3.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES - continued
Employee benefits — continued

iv.

Share-based payment expenses

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The
fair value is measured at the grant date using the
binominal lattice model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the share
options, the total estimated fair value of share options
is spread over the vesting period, taking into account
the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of share options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the capital reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium account)
or the option expires (when it is released directly to

retained profits).

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are interests and other costs incurred in

connection with the borrowing of funds. All borrowing costs

are charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income in the period in which the costs are incurred.

3.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES - continued

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type of class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if
they share a majority of these criteria.

Investment properties
Investment properties are completed properties which are
held for their investment potential, any rental income being
negotiated at arm’s length.

From 1 January 2009, investment properties under
construction have been accounted for in the same way as
completed investment properties. Specifically, construction
costs incurred for investment properties under construction
are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the
investment properties under construction. Investment
properties under construction are measured at fair value at
the end of the reporting period. Any difference between the
fair value of the investment properties under construction
and their carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. Prior to 1 January 2009,
the leasehold land and building elements of investment
properties under construction were accounted separately;
the leasehold land element was accounted for as an
operating lease and the building element was measured at
cost less impairment losses, if any.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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31 March 2011 =Z2——F=A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Investment properties — continued

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the

year in which the item is derecognised.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial
assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as
a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash

flows of the financial assets have been impacted.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below

its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of

impairment could include:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

(b) default or delinquency in interest or principal

payments; or

(c) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

3.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Impairment of financial assets - continued

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period of 7 to 90 days, observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with

default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted

at the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such

impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts

previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

3.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss
is recognised directly in equity. For available-for-sale
debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently
reversed if an increase in the fair value of the investment
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
which are described in Note 3, management has made
certain key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that may have a significant risk in causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below:

(a) Estimated impairment of goodwiill

The Group performs annual tests on whether there
has been impairment of goodwill in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in note 3. The recoverable
amounts of cash-generating units are determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
require the use of estimates and assumptions made
by management on the future operation of the
business, pre-tax discount rates, and other assumptions
underlying the value-in-use calculations.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued
(b)

+

(c)

Impairment of trade receivables

The aged debt profile of trade debtors is reviewed
on a regular basis to ensure that the trade debtor
balances are collectible and follow up actions are
promptly carried out if the agreed credit periods have
been exceeded. However, from time to time, the
Group may experience delays in collection. Where
recoverability of trade debtor balances are called into
doubts, specific provisions for bad and doubtful debts
are made based on credit status of the customers,
the aged analysis of the trade receivable balances and
write-off history. Certain receivables may be initially
identified as collectible, yet subsequently become
uncollectible and result in a subsequent write-off of
the related receivable to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Changes in the collectability
of trade receivables for which provisions are not made

could affect our results of operations.

Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group estimates the
useful lives of property, plant and equipment in order
to determine the amount of depreciation expenses to
be recorded. The useful lives are estimated at the time
the asset is acquired based on historical experience, the
expected usage, wear and tear of the assets, as well
as technical obsolescence arising from changes in the
market demands or service output of the assets. The
Group also perform annual reviews on whether the

assumptions made on useful lives continue to be valid.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

(d)

(e)

Impairment of non-current assets

If a triggering event occurs indicating that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable, an
assessment of the carrying amount of that asset will
be performed. Triggering events include significant
adverse changes in the market value of an asset,
changes in the business or regulatory environment, or
certain legal events. The interpretation of such events
requires judgment from management with respect
to whether such an event has occurred. Upon the
occurrence of triggering events, the carrying amounts
of non-current assets are reviewed to assess whether
their recoverable amounts have declined below their
carrying amounts. The recoverable amount is the
present value of estimated net future cash flows which
the Group expects to generate from the future use of
the asset, plus the assets residual value on disposal.
Where the recoverable amount of non-current assets
is less than its carrying value, an impairment loss is
recognised to write the assets down to its recoverable
amount.

Income taxes and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in different
jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in
determining the provision for income tax. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. The
outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.

4. FERFTREMZERRE-

&
(d)

(e)

FREREZRE

AR EHELEERTET
RERBEWE - Y ZEE ZREE
ETHE - BRENHBEREEDE
REATNEE  XBREERE
BEHRETEREMH ZAEEHTF
EEEERAERRERSEEHZ
FEMRE EREBRS4E
FARBEEZREEIRERN U
FEREzTREEEREE TR
EENKEZIREE - TRE S
REAGEEEPRARERNZEEN
EEZHFRERESREFELZ
BE mEZEELER2NERE
EBE-fMFRBDEEZATWRESER
REREE @ AIBRBESENLE
ZEEMREHETROEHE -

FieREEERR

FEBAXNTEABDEEENFRE
Bl RER] IEHBESEZE
FEFEHEARHE RAEFXEKS
B TRRHRZES R ARERY
BIRABENRZ RTE i
SEENRAB B R AR
ERE ARERBFEELERE
R R T IS B IR AE B IR B A o

EEEERARTRAREZHAAB
FEA8 5% T A A DA 85 oK 2R B9 PR AR B
B IERAEZESRIGEH
RRBEBREEANELENEEE
EREANGERIBTE -

Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2010/2011



Notes to the Financial Statements

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued
(f)

i

(9)

(h)

Measurement of convertible note

On issuance of convertible note, the fair value of
the liability component is determined using a market
rate for an equivalent non-convertible note; and
this amount is carried as a long term liability on the
amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion
or redemption. The remainder of the proceeds is
allocated to the conversion option that is recognised
and included in the convertible note reserve, net of
transaction costs. The splitting of the liability and
equity components requires an estimation of the

market interest rate.

Measurement of fair value of equity-settled
transactions

The Company operates share option schemes under
which employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payment transactions. The cost of these equity-settled
transactions with employees is measured by reference
to the fair value at the date at which they are granted,
using assumptions including expected volatility and
risk free interest rate. Such cost is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will

ultimately vest.

Measurement of promissory note
The fair value of promissory note is determined using
an estimated interest rate and the amount is carried on

amortised cost basis until extinguished or redemption.

&
(f)

(9)

(h)
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

Information reported internally to the chief operating
decision maker for the purpose of resource allocation BERIZSDBRE2ER  IEFRAT
and assessment of segment performance focuses on RN RECERIRE - AEE DA
types of goods or services delivered or provided. The SESE D RUEAESHERRE =2
Group organised into three operating divisions: provision HteeE N BBl RS - UL & 2E ) it 3%
of general hospital services, provision of healthcare and ROEUAREYZEBHEEL - ZZ
hospital management services, pharmaceutical wholesale DEIIAEEBERREDIBER 2 H%E o
and distribution and pharmaceutical retail chain business.

These divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its

segment information.

SHEEH
B BEERAEE N2 HUEEIRSD

96

Segment revenue and results SEBRERES
2011 —E——%F
Pharmaceutical
wholesale and
Provision of distribution
healthcare and
Provision of and hospital  pharmaceutical
general hospital management retail chain
services services business Eliminations Consolidated
ENtERA8
RtEaH REERR NRENSE
BEREBRE  BREERE BHERE Ha ]
HKS$' 000 HKS' 000 HKS$' 000 HKS$' 000 HK$'000
THT T#T TH#T F#T FéT
Turnover EXE
External sales HHE 114,140 1,289 1,375,439 - 1,490,868
Inter-segment sales PEEEE - - - - -
Total turnover BT 114,140 1,289 1,375,439 - 1,490,868
Inter-segment sales are charged PERHENR
at am'’s length NYRENE
Results £ |
Segment results PREE 14,647 (285) 76,812 - 91,174
Unallocated other revenue RABzE R 5,292
Unallocated other income RABZE A 336
Unallocated corporate expenses b At S (17,817)
Loss on early redemption of REBEAR
promissory note ZEZERE (9,681)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR W E 955
Profit from operations B ERRA 70,259
Finance costs BBER (11,508)
Profit before taxation B AEH 58,751
Taxation LA (21,541)
Profit for the year REERA 37,210
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 5. PEEHE &
Segment assets and liabilities SHEEEREGER
2011 —E——5
Pharmaceutical
Provision of  wholesale and
healthcare distribution and
Provision of and hospital  pharmaceutical
general hospital management retail chain
services services business Consolidated
EORBRSS
Rtizan REZRR DRENSE
BERG% ERTERYE EHEES #e
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
Assets BE
Segment assets PEEE 154,833 4,960 1,203,473 1,363,266
Unallocated corporate assets ROBebXEE 11,457
Consolidated total assets GREEME 1,374,723
Liabilities fff
Segment liabilities PEEE 21,687 73 272,857 294,617
Promissory note RRER 194,183
Convertible note ARREE 3,969
Deferred taxation EEBE 598
Unallocated corporate liabilities RAMZCEEE 4,658
Consolidated total liabilities GREEAE 498,025
Other segment information Htt s HEH
Pharmaceutical
Provision of  wholesale and
healthcare  distribution and
Provision of and hospital  pharmaceutical
general hospital management retail chain
services services business Unallocated Consolidated
EngaRo8
R’itEa" REBEER WRENSE
BRBE  BREERH EHERE FOE w8
HK$' 000 HKS"000 HKS$'000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TEL TER TE#T TET TET
Other information Hih &
Capital expenditure ERER 1,540 - 2,848 - 4,388
Depreciation ik 7,068 149 3,501 470 11,188
Amortisation of prepaid BAREREEY
lease payments 982 - 161 - 1,143
(Gain)loss on disposal of property, ~ HEMNE  BER
plant and equipment Rz (BR) /BR (15) (19) 191 = 157
Provision for impairment loss EARHtENFERE
of trade and other receivables BRkA 21 174 1,497 - 1,882

RUR
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 5. DIEEHE &
Segment revenue and results SHKERER
2010 —E-EF
Pharmaceutical
Provision of wholesale and
healthcare  distribution and
Provision of and hospital ~ pharmaceutical
general hospital management retail chain
services services business Eliminations Consolidated
BYRERDH
RitGen REBER NRENEE
BRE% BRERRE BHEEER H S
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TARL TAn TEn Tén TEn
Turnover EXE
External sales HHEE 125,360 1,550 52,855 - 179,765
Inter-segment sales PEBHE = = - - -
Total turnover Besn 125,360 1,550 52,855 - 179,765
Inter-segment sales are charged PERHENR
at arm'’s length NYRENE
Results £ 4
Segment results PEREE (162,196) (1,630) 3,070 - (160,756)
Unallocated other revenue APBzHfhE 419
Unallocated other income RAB 2 H B 230
Unallocated corporate expenses KBRS (20324)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEWBARZEER (23,185)
Loss from operations ReLkER (203,616)
Finance costs HEER (1,297)
Loss before taxation BREAEE (204,913)
Taxation LA (1,723)
Loss for the year TEERR (206,636)
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 5. MEH-&
Segment assets and liabilities SHEERAR
2010 —E-EF
Pharmaceutical

Provision of wholesale and
healthcare  distribution and

Provision of and hospital  pharmaceutical
general hospital management retail chain
services services business Consolidated
EYRER D
REZEH RUBAER URENZE
Bz R B EERE EHEER =RE
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TET TR TR TR
Assets BE
Segment assets P HEE 134,114 4,884 1,120,907 1,259,905
Unallocated corporate assets ABeLEEE 22,827
Consolidated total assets SEEEAR 1,282,732
Liabilities i
Segment liabilities PEER 14,794 406 278,934 294,134
Promissory note AREE 240,482
Convertible note MRREE 3,741
Deferred taxation RERIE 636
Unallocated corporate liabilities N ACE 3= 6,897
Consolidated total liabilities neaBas 545,890
Pharmaceutical
Provision of wholesale and
healthcare  distribution and
Provision of and hospital pharmaceutical
general hospital management retail chain
services services business Unallocated Consolidated
ENHBERDE
RitgeH REUEBER NRENEE
BRR% ERERRK BHEEER AR G&
HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
ThR ThARL Thn ThT ThET
Other information EtEs
Capital expenditure ERRX 7,018 61 2 - 7,401
Depreciation ik 9,751 18 200 1,060 11,200
Amortisation of prepaid BARERERH
lease payments 967 - 10 - 977
Loss on disposal of property, HENE BER
plant and equipment RE2ER 28 - - - 28
Provision for impairment loss EARAMERFERE
of trade and other receivables FiERE 489 - - - 489
Impairment loss on goodwil BEHESSE 171,422 - - - 171,422
EEEEEEABRALQA 99
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100

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group's accounting policies described in Note 3.
Segment results represent the profit/(loss) generated by each
segment without allocation of finance costs, loss on early
redemption of promissory note, gain/(loss) on disposal of
subsidiaries and taxation. This is the measure reported to the
chief operating decision maker for the purposes of resource

allocation and assessment of segment performance.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and

allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to reportable segments other
than corporate assets. Goodwill is allocated to

reportable segments as described in Note 11.

° all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other
than corporate liabilities, promissory note, convertible

note and deferred taxation.

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are mainly located in Hong Kong
and the PRC. The following table provides an analysis of the
Group's turnover by geographical market, irrespective of the

origin of the goods/services:

SHWEH-&
ATHREDMARA 2SR EME
SFFAEE 2B BE —B - D KA
EEDEELZEN (BR) Tk
MBRER REFELALZEEZER 1
EMBAR 2zl (BB RBEZD
Bt DHERIER D BRRFMAEE
ITEEBERREBREZEE -

REZSBRARS B BHERME :

e KREXEEN HAEEIEZET
RS M -BEEIBEAFRD
B R

e KREXEFE AARE  TRERE
BRELEHBEREN  IEEESD
[ESDIEE: k-

WERH
FEBZEBETEVUREBRFE T
FREAEEZERERMET S (TR
B R ZRIR) 2 DA

Turnover by

geographical market

BRIGWETBEZEER
2011 2010
—2——% —E-EF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T#ExT FE&xT
Hong Kong BB - -
PRC ] 1,490,868 179,765
1,490,868 179,765
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SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued
Geographical information - continued

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of non-
current assets analysed by the geographical area in which

the assets are located:

B 7% R MY &

31 March 2011 =&2——F=A=+—H

DHREH-E

WERH-®
UTBREEFRBHEIFZERDE
B2 IREED H

Carrying amount

of non-current assets*

SF it Bh 38 & 2 AR T {E
2011 2010
—E——% —T-T&
HK$' 000 HK$'000
THET THET
Hong Kong BB 1,262 1,734
PRC * 856,840 867,626
858,102 869,360
* Non-current assets excluding financial instruments and * FRBEETEEER T ARIELERE

deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers
For the years ended 31 March 2011 and 2010, no single

customer contributed 10% or more to the Group’s turnover.

gE-

FREEERZEH
BE-Z——GR-_Z—ZFF=A=1+—
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6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6. VE BEREH

At 31 March 2010

RZE-EF=B=1-H

The Group XEKH
Furniture  Leasehold Machinery and Motor Office
Building  and fixtures improvements  equipment vehicles  equipment Total
#F RURRE HRAVREE BEREH RE BOERG #it
HKS" 000 HK$' 000 HK$" 000 HK$' 000 HK$ 000 HKS' 000 HK$ 000
TER THRT TR TR TER TER TER
Cost K&
At 1 April 2009 R=ZZNEMA-A 5,350 3,228 15,294 30,529 9,138 6,725 70,264
Additions hE - 57 3205 3,348 352 419 7,401
On acquisition of subsidiaries ~ WEKEAR = - 2613 = 2,376 12,507 17,49
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWBAR - (30) (2,426) (9,336) (1,022) (1,358) (14,172)
Exchange realignment ERZR 31 18 84 174 38 29 374
Disposals HE - - - (764) - - (764)
At 31 March 2010 and R=%- g*ﬁiﬁi‘f—ﬁ
1 April 2010 k=5-345MmA- 5,381 3273 18,790 23,951 10,882 18,322 80,599
Additions KE = 72 1,450 774 508 1,584 4,388
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAF = = (1383) (5,909) (1,013) (1,257) (9,562)
Exchange realignment ERZE 214 129 678 754 270 608 2,653
Disposals HE& - - (46) - (1,205) (345) (1,59)
At 31 March 2011 R=E--£=8=1-A 5,595 3474 19,489 19,570 9,442 18,912 76,482
Depreciation and impairment T ER#{E
At 1 April 2009 R-ZENEMA-A 355 1,781 4,766 13,241 3,054 3,399 26,5%
On acquisition of subsidiaries ~ WEKBAT - - 865 - 466 2,974 4,305
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAF - 9) (428) (3,359) (663) (441) (4,900)
Provided for the year REERME 161 523 2,179 5,780 1610 947 11,200
Written back on disposals HERED - - - (181) = = (181)
Exchange realignment EXZH 2 10 25 75 14 15 141
At 31 March 2010 and RZ2-F£Zf=1-8
1 April 2010 k=-5-%EMmA-A 518 2,305 7,407 15,556 4,481 6,894 37,161
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAF - - (421) (2,516) (457) (592) (3,986)
Provided for the year REERE 164 399 2578 3,403 1,672 2972 11,188
Written back on disposals 35348 - = (19) = (632) (133) (784)
Exchange realignment ERER % 100 319 614 136 m 1,465
At 31 March 2011 RZB--5Zf=1-8 706 2,804 9,864 17,057 5,200 9413 45,044
Net book values BERE
At 31 March 2011 RZE——%ZB=+-H 4,889 670 9,625 2,513 4,282 9,499 31,438

ZBFREBRIIUDBEOESH -

The building was held outside Hong Kong under medium

term lease.

Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2010/2011
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PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 7. BAHEEREA
The Group
TEME
2011 2010
—E——%F —E-EF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
TET THExT
The Group's prepaid lease payments rEBEENEERERE
comprise:
Land outside Hong Kong under ERBIIAFEHELY
medium term lease Bzt 33,722 33,394
Analysed for reporting purposes as: EERIRAZEZ D -
Current assets (include in trade and RBEE (BERESZR
other receivables and deposits) HihEWRERIZE)
(Note 14) (FffEE14) 1,171 1,126
Non-current assets FREBEE 32,551 32,268
33,722 33,394
At 31 March 2011, prepaid lease payments with a R-ZZE——F=A=+—H ' REEY
carrying amount of approximately HK$4,401,000 (2010: 4,401,000/ 7T (=T —FF : 3,709,000

HK$3,709,000) have been pledged to secure credit facilities

granted to an independent third party.

BT 2ENHEHEREC IR T 28X
F=FZEEFHER-
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8. KEME
8. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
The Group
TEME
2011 2010
—E——% —E-ZF
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
TFHET FET
Completed investment properties EXRTIREMZE 6,045 5,586
At fair value BOAFE
At 1 April ROEUA—H 5,586 -
On acquisition of subsidiaries g AN = 5,586
Exchange realignment [ & & 228 -
Gain on property revaluation MEBH2ZWE 231 -
At 31 March R=B=+—H 6,045 5,586

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at 31
March 2011 and 2010 have been arrived at on the basis of a
valuation carried out at that date by Messrs. BMI Appraisals
Limited, independent qualified professional valuers not
connected to the Group. The valuation was arrived at by
reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals are measured using the fair value
model and are classified and accounted for as investment

FEEZRENVER-Z——FR=-F
—BF=ZA=t+-HZAFEDNREHA
AEBYEFAECBYEEREXMGE
B M ABAFEARABDETZEEM
BE -HENSZEREVEZIXRZER
THEREMEE -

AEERBELHESFHURREAS Y
AZHENERZIRA D FEEREKG
B URERFTARENE-

properties.
The carrying amount of investment properties shown above LR EYHE 2 REERE
comprises:
2011 2010
—E——% —E-FF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
THET FHET
Land outside Hong Kong: BERBIINZ T
Medium-term lease FREFFE A 6,045 5,586

Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2010/2011
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued

At 31 March 2011, investment properties with a
carrying amount of approximately HK$6,045,000 (2010:
HK$5,586,000) have been pledged to secure credit facilities
granted to an independent third party.

For the year ended 31 March 2011, property rental income
earned during the year was approximately HK$314,000
(2010: HK$19,000). The property held had committed
tenants for the next three (2010: four) years. At the end of
the reporting period, the Group contracted with tenants for

the following future minimum lease receivables:

B 7% R M &

31 March 2011 =&2——F=A=+—H

BEME-—&
R=ZZ——F=A=+—0 ' REEY
6,045,000/& 7t (—ZE—Z % : 5,586,000
BIT) ZREVECHRR T —BBILE=
B ZiEEEHIET -

BE-Z——F=A=1t—-HLEEE"
FriRE 2 M EH S WAL E314,0008 T
(ZZ—F4F 19,0008 ) - iFEZ
MERRR=ZF (ZE—FTF . OF)H
BHEFAGEAME - RREHR - NEEE
PN Z R RREEWASNT :

2011 2010
—®——% —T-T%
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
TH#T FET
Within one year —FR 271 235
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EZELFE (BREEWE) 456 403
727 638
CASH AND BANK BALANCES BeRBITHEHEES

At 31 March 2011, the cash and bank balances of the
Group included currencies denominated in Renminbi
(“RMB") amounted to approximately HK$67,659,000 (2010:
HK$49,334,000) which is not freely convertible into other

currencies.

R=ZB——F=A=1+—8  A&EEZHE
ERIBTHEBEFEUARE (AR
ST E A H#K67,659,0008 T (=B —F
149,334,000 ) 2 E¥ - EFREH
HABRAHME -
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10. GOODWILL 10. &8
The Group
TEE
HK$’ 000
THET
Cost B#F
At 1 April 2009 R-ZEZRFMA—H 375,468
Arising from acquisition of subsidiaries FRWEBERERAREE
during the year 785,169
Adjustment to consideration (Note (b)) REAE (F220b)) (7,764)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB QA (24,500)
At 31 March 2010 and 1 April 2010 R=Z-ZF=A=+—HEK
—E-ZHFNMA—-H 1,128,373
Disposal of subsidiaries HEKM B AR (65,492)
At 31 March 2011 R-ZZB——F=A=+—H 1,062,881
Impairment e
At 1 April 2009 R-ZEZhFEWA—H 168,883
Impairment loss recognised ERRBEEE 171,422
At 31 March 2010 and 1 April 2010 R-ZE—ZF=A=+—H
R—ZE-—ZFWA—H 340,305
Written off on disposal of subsidiaries o B A F B 8 (65,492)
At 31 March 2011 R-ZZ——f=ZA=+—H 274,813
Carrying value REE
At 31 March 2011 R-2——%#=RA=+—8H 788,068
At 31 March 2010 R-ZE-Z2F=A=1+—H 788,068
106 Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited
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10. GOODWILL - continued

Notes:

(a)

11.

i

At the end of the reporting period, the Group assessed
the recoverable amount of goodwill, and determined
that no impairment loss on goodwill is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. As at
March 2010, goodwill on provision of general hospital and
healthcare services in the PRC was impaired by approximately
HK$171,422,000.

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are

disclosed in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Group received
cash compensation of approximately HK$7,764,000 from
vendors under profit guarantee pursuant to the sales and

purchase agreements.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill set out in

Note 10 has been allocated to the following cash generating

units (CGUs). The carrying amount of goodwill (net of

accumulated impairment losses) as at 31 March 2011 and

2010 are allocated as follows:

B 7% R M &

31 March 2011 =&2——F=A=+—H

10. W8 — &

11.

FoE -

(@ RBMEHR AEEFEFE2ATWRE
S WEETEFEREEBEERF
EEHERRABR R-_T—ZTF=
A=+—H EHERMHFEHERK
BERE2EAESRMEN171,422,000
BT ©

FRRERENAZFERES MR
RHEEVI R E o

(b) REBE-Z—ZF=A=+—HILHF
B AEERBEESHEZFBREM
BB HUWEKN7,764,0008 T 2 REH
fg o

8 R E AR

REENRAmMS  ME10MBZEEE
ARETIHERSEEEN -R=F——
FR-F-TF=A=+-0 BHEZ
IREE (MRBFREESE) 2EOT :

The Group *5EE
2011 2010
—g——% —T-2H
HK$’' 000 HK$' 000
TH#T FET
Provision of general hospital services AP B3R i 4R & 1 B8 B AR 75
in the PRC 2,899 2,899
Pharmaceutical wholesale and PRARE Z ZEHE 3 & 2 85
distribution and pharmaceutical retail UREYZEBHE
chain business in the PRC ES 785,169 785,169
788,068 788,068
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11. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

- continued

Provision of general hospital services in the PRC
The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on
a value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period and a discount rate of 11.37%
(2010: 9.71%) per annum. Cash flow projections during
the budgeted period are based on the same expected
gross margins throughout the budget period. The cash
flows beyond the budgeted period have been extrapolated
using a steady 3% (2010: 3%) per annum growth rate
by reference to market rate. This growth rate does not
exceed the long-term average growth rate for the market.
Management believes that any reasonably possible change
in the key assumptions on which recoverable amount is
based would not cause the aggregate carrying amount to
exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of this CGU.
Management determined the budgeted gross margin based
on past performance and its expectations for the market

development.

Pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution and

pharmaceutical retail chain business in the PRC

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on
a value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period and a discount rate of 9.75%
(2010: 9.63%) per annum. Cash flow projections during
the budgeted period are based on the same expected gross
margins throughout the budget period. The cash flows
beyond the budgeted period have been extrapolated using
a steady 3% (2010: 3%) per annum by reference to market
rate. This growth rate does not exceed the long-term
average growth rate for the market. Management believes
that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions
on which recoverable amount is based would not cause
the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of this CGU. Management determined
the budgeted gross margin based on past performance and

its expectations for the market development.

11.

AmEEREAN &

RPBERHGFEHERES

HWIRESEEEN 2T WESIEIIREFE
REEER mEREEREEERER
HERELFH U EEERES L 2R
ERBE UARIFEXEFF11.37% (=
T—FF 1 971%)TE -BEHRZE
SREREE > DEREEEEHRAER
ZHBAENERFAE FEEHEZRER
BRAIZEMHNELUIR (ZE—FF :
3%) ZBEFIHREHEHE - IEREW
THEBMEZRATHEBERE - EEE
MHiE FETKRESEMREZE AR
RAREEREEEE  TSEHLR
SELBEVCRAAEEAE T RE S
HAE EHEEREBEBIREREES
SRR BB EEERE -

ROBEZEHHRBRIBLURENES
EFEHEES
HReELEBEN 2T RESREIIREFE
FREBEEER > mEREBEREEEEMI
ERERFHHMBHEEMSHZES
MR URITERGFI75% (=& —
ZF 1963%)TE -FHEHRZRER
27EA - DEREEEEHRNER 2
EANEFE -BEHEz2ReR2H2
EMBRMELUI% (ZF—FF :3%) Z
BEFRERZEHES WIERFWLEB
MEZRBFHERE - EEERE 5
EEl € RBEKIEZE R REZATREH
BreeBes FTEEESESES
VRHAEBREAWE S EEAE -
EEERBEBEREREHMBREZ
FERETTEEERE -
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Annual Report 2010/2011



Notes to the Financial Statements
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31 March 2011 =&2——F=A=+—H

12. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 12. RMBARIZEE
The Company
EAT

2011 2010
—E——% —E-ZF
HK$’' 000 HK$’ 000
T#T FE&T
Unlisted shares, at costs FEmBRM  BRRAE 376,265 376,265
Less: Impairment loss recognised B BERREEE (267,575) (267,575)
108,690 108,690
Financial guarantee contract BEEREHN - 3,410
108,690 112,100

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

The carrying amounts of the investments in subsidiaries are
reduced to their recoverable amounts which are determined
by reference to the estimation of future cash flows expected
to be generated from the respective subsidiaries.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 March
2011 are set out in Note 42 to the consolidated financial

FEW (FEAY) M2 R FEAJIER
RERARBERER -

TR 2 BIR & 2 BRE B T R = & 7]
WEEE mAKEEEASRERE
BEMEARELE ZMETRRREREM
BE -

AABR=ZBE——F=A=+—Hz=E
EfEATFEBEENGEEMBHRERME

statements. 42 o
13. INVENTORIES 13. &
The Group
EEME
2011 2010
—E——%f —E-EF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FTET FHE T
Finished goods K 110,204 95,154
EEEEE B R ADF
F #® 2010/2011
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14. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 14 B REMBRFRERESE
DEPOSITS
The Group The Company
TEE LT
2011 2010 2011 2010
—B——% -—ZT-TF "—B—% -—T-ZF
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
FET FHET TET FHET
Trade and bills receivables B ZEWFHIERZ#E 204,917 126,226 = =
Deposits paid eftizs 181 181 170 170
Prepayments TR FRIE 42,849 30,429 124 162
Prepaid lease payments FENHEERIE
(Note 7) (M=E7) 1,171 1,126 - -
Other receivables H th & I TR 1E 65,831 83,174 - 50
314,949 241,136 294 382
Payment terms with customers from the pharmaceutical AREBHEHEYMBERDEUREYZE
. wholesale and distribution and pharmaceutical retain BHEEEBEFI U ZNRAREES
' chain business are mainly on credit. Invoices are normally AR - BHE—MREMNEH B HE30
¥ payable from 30 to 90 days of issuance. Payment terms with ZOHRXZA - KRB HEEFSHEER N
customers from general hospital and healthcare and hospital LERARBREEEREEFIT LMK
management services are normally payable from 0 to 30 HFR-RAROE3I0A A ° LTHR

BEPRR2EZBBRERR D

days. The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
at the end of the reporting period:

110

The Group
AEME

2011 2010
—E——£ —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$' 000
T&T FH& T
0 to 90 days 0£290H 187,678 116,670
91 to 180 days 91£180H 11,433 7,217
181 to 365 days 1812365H 5,750 985
Over 365 days HiB365H 3,938 3,447
208,799 128,319
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B REREE (3,882) (2,093)
204,917 126,226

Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2010/2011
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14. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 4. RHRAMBIHRARES -
DEPOSITS - continued #
Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts which EXRBCEREZRECERRED
are past due at the end of the reporting period for which 7R B #R 380 HA T 7N £ [ 30 £ i Uk R R R UK
the Group has not recognised an allowance for doubtful REBRREHBE2ARE EERABBERE
receivables because there has not been a significant change REEEZUWEBEARESEHLR B AW
in credit quality and the amounts are still considered | o AEE I ER U FE L ERIEE EME
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral or other HRREMEEMRER  TEETE
credit enhancements over these balances nor does it have a FALREBERRZEHF 2 EMRIE
legal right of offset against any amounts owed by the Group TEXT8Y

to the counterparty.

Ageing of receivables that are past due but not B 58 RA1E 3 9% i (8 B R Z AR ES
impaired
2011 2010
—2——% —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FHET THET
Overdue by: 2R
1 to 90 days 1£90H 11,433 7,217
91 to 180 days 912180H 5,750 985
Over 180 days #1801 56 1,354
Total et 17,239 9,556
Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts FIRBRZBE
The Group
*xEE
2011 2010
—Z2——% —E-EF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THET THERT
At 1 April KA —H 2,093 1,596
Exchange realignment & A% 73 8
Reversal of provision for the year FREERERD (166) =
Impairment losses recognised EHME S EWRERR
on trade receivables ZHEEE 1,882 489
At 31 March R=A=+—8H 3,882 2,093

Sl
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31 March 2011 =2——H#=A=+—H

14. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 14. B REMBERRERZRE -
DEPOSITS - continued #®
Ageing of impaired trade receivables ERERIBERRFZER
The Group
&M
2011 2010
—B——%F —E-2F
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
THET FERT
Over 365 days HiB365H 3,882 2,093
15. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 15. T4 €M T
The Group and the Company FZEEMRELT
Redemption

option contract

- ROAESH
: HK$’ 000
> FET
At 1 April 2009 R-ZEZRFMNA—H 3
Fair value changes NEEZH 93
At 31 March 2010 and 1 April 2010 RZZB-ZBF=ZA=+—-HRK
—E-ZEFMA-H 96
Fair value changes NEEEEH 336
At 31 March 2011 W-—2——F=HA=+—H 432
Note: Ff&E -
Derivative financial instruments represented the conversion option FTESRMITREIERERRToUBRRBREENR
element of the convertible note issued by the Group and are BRAEIMG  ERBERERURRSREIRME
measured fair value using the black-scholes option pricing model AWmas—-SmiiRsEs (M E -5
("Black-Scholes Model”) at initial recognition and at the end of each WHE ) E DA FEE o
reporting period.
112 Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited
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B 7% R MY R

31 March 2011 =&2——F=A=+—H

16. SHARE CAPITAL 16. & &
Number of share Amount
Bir®E 4]
HK$' 000
TET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares EaR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each BREMECETZEER
—at 1 April 2009 -RZZZNENA—H 10,000,000,000 500,000
— increase in authorised share capital —EE R A N
(Note (a)) (Hfit(a)) 12,000,000,000 600,000
—at 31 March 2010 and 1 April 2010 -R=ZE-ZF=A=+—H
k-—ZE-ZHEMA—H 22,000,000,000 1,100,000
- share consolidation (Note (d)) - R & BF (B 7E () (19,800,000,000) -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.5 each BREE..5EITZ &ER
- at 31 March 2011 -R-_2——%=B=+—H 2,200,000,000 1,100,000
Non-voting convertible preference shares — #ERZE R ELK
Non-voting convertible preference shares S REEO0.058 T2 ERERE
of HK$0.05 each AHRBRELER
—at 1 April 2009 -RZZENFNA—H - -
— increase in authorised share capital —EERAE M
(Note (a)) (Kiit(a)) 8,000,000,000 400,000
— at 31 March 2010 and 1 April 2010 -R=ZE-ZF=A=+—H
kR-—Z2-ZEMA—H 8,000,000,000 400,000
- share consolidation (Note (d)) - &6t (AiE) (7,200,000,000) -
Non-voting convertible preference shares % B E {H0.5# T Z 1% R 12
of HK$0.5 each ] 45 B% 12 55 A%
- at 31 March 2011 -R-Z2——%=B=+—H 800,000,000 400,000

i
i
Ny
o it
-
©m
a
il
N>
- 4l
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B 7% R M R

31 March 2011 =&2——F=A=+—H

16. SHARE CAPITAL - continued 16. & — 8
Number of share Amount
Bin&E &8
HK$' 000
TET
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAE:
Ordinary shares EaER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each SREE0.0SE T ZEBR
—at 1 April 2009, 31 March 2010 -R=ZZFEBEAFMA—AH
and 1 April 2010 —E-FTF=A=+-HK
—E-ZHEMA—H 4,495,111,986 224,756
— exercise of share options — 1T H B AR 25,800,000 1,290
- right issue of shares (Note (c)) —BATHRR®D (M) 1,503,470,662 75,173
~ share consolidation (Note (d)) -R® &6 (M) (5,421,944,384) -
— converted from convertible - RRELERBRR
preference shares 70,000,000 35,000
Ordinary shares of HK$0.5 each SREESETZEER
- at 31 March 2011 -R-_E——%=HA=+—H 672,438,264 336,219
Non-voting convertible preference shares BREEZERELR
Non-voting convertible preference BREME0CETZERERE
shares of HK$0.05 each TERRELER
- at 1 April 2009 -R=ZEEAFMNA—H - -
~ shares issued as consideration - ERWBRERTZRNO
for acquisition (Note (b)) (Bi&Emb)) 4,833,333,333 241,667
— at 31 March 2010 and 1 April 2010 ==F2= EEH T=E
R=—E-ZFNA—H 4,833,333,333 241,667
- adjustment on right issue of shares —Fﬁ?ﬂl‘fﬂ,\ﬂxﬂxfﬁﬂﬁg 966,666,667 48,333
— share consolidation (Note (d)) — R0 E Bt (B15E(d) (5,220,000,000) =
— conversion to ordinary shares —EnATEER (70,000,000) (35,000)
Non-voting convertible preference BSREESETZEETE
shares of HK$0.5 each CIF: 145t
- at 31 March 2011 -R-Z——F=A=+—H 510,000,000 255,000

Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited
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16. SHARE CAPITAL - continued

Notes:

i H#

(a)

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders
in the extraordinary general meeting held on 3 March 2010,
the authorised share capital of the Company was increased
from HK$500,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.05 each to HK$1,500,000,000 by creation
of an additional 12,000,000,000 ordinary shares and

8,000,000,000 non-voting convertible preference shares.

The preference shares are non-voting shares and non-
redeemable. The holders of the preference shares are entitled
to receive the same dividends as the holders of ordinary
shares. In addition, the holders of the preference shares have
the right to convert any preference share into the Company’s
ordinary shares at any time at the conversion price at the
rate of 1 to 1 each. The conversion price will be subject to

adjustments only upon occurrence of certain dilutive events.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, 1,503,470,662 right
shares on the basis of one right share for every three shares
at HK$0.062 per right share were issued by the Company (the
“Rights Issue”).

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders
in the extraordinary general meeting held on 9 December
2010, every ten issued and unissued ordinary shares of
HK$0.05 each was consolidated into one consolidated
ordinary share of HK$0.5 each and every ten issued and
unissued convertible preference shares of HK$0.05 each was
consolidated into one consolidated convertible preference
share of HK$0.5 each (the “Share Consolidation”).

All the shares issued during the year rank pari passu with the

then existing shares in all respects.

B 7% R MY R

31 March 2011 =&2——F=A=+—H

16. R &x — 48
Fff5E -
(@) WMERRNR=-ZE—ZTE= H—E%ﬁﬁ
ZREEBEINASLELEBEB2EEB RS

ROARDBEZEERKEBEIMNEER
12,000,000,0008% & % EI{E0.05%8 7T 2
98 IR %.8,000,000,0000% & 18 Z £ 7]
BB 8 % IR - 500,000,000 T (2
#10,000,000,000 Z @) B M ZE
1,500,000,0005% 7T °

BERDBERZETTEERSD - EL
REBABEEREZBRISE ARE
ZRE - BERREE A B R
112 e R R E AR L RE R
BALBREER BRREENHEET
BEEmES A TR -

BE-T——F=A=+—HLEE"
RABZRBZRBRHEE — RUERRK G
ZEE . DUSRMHRKRRK%H0.0628 T 2E
& 8 171,503,470,662 1% 5 iR A% 12 ([
B e

RERRNR-—Z-—FFT-ANBET
ZREFHIASLBBZEBRER
BFTREBTRARBITEREE.058
TREBER SR —IREESBITZ
SHEER  MEB+REHTRARET
BREECSETZATRRELR &
HtH—REESEBTZEHAIRKRESL
BRBEHD -

FRARTZAEROESTEHYEER
ZRERNDEZRRES AL -
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17. RESERVES 17. (R
The Company b. /N |
Share-hased
Share payment  Contributed Convertible  Accumulated

premium reserve surplus  note reserve losses Total
NRHEER TRERE

RORR 2R D8 1] RIER @t

HK$'000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000

TiEn TR TR TiEn TR TiEn

At 1 April 2009 RZEENENA-H 335,267 4,658 1,452 4,448 (126,214) 219,611
Issue of share options BTBRE = 5,617 = = = 5,617
Issue of convertible BOTRRELR

preference shares 338,333 - - - - 338,333
Share options cancelled T IRE - (4,045) - - 4,045 =
Equity component of TRREEZ

convertible note BHIH - - - (1,410) 4,448 3,038
Deferred tax related to ATRREEEEL

convertible note EERE - - - (501) = (501)
Loss for the year KEERR - - - - (332,382) (332,382)
At 31 March 2010 RZE-BE=ZA=1-H

and 1 April 2010 R=E-Z5MA-H 673,600 6,230 1,452 2,537 (450,103) 233,716
Issue of right shares BOBRRA 18,041 = = = = 18,041
Expenses related to issue BRETHRRD 2EX

of right shares (6,855) - - - = (6,855)
Adjustment on right issue AETHRRORER

of shares (48,333) - - - - (48,333)
Exercise of share options ERRE 344 (344) - - - -
Share options cancelled SRR - (66) - - 66 -
Issue of share options BTERE - 5,981 - - - 5,981
Share premium cancellation FHERNEE (446,547) - - - 446,547 -
Loss for the year TEEER - - - = (14,197) (14,197)
At 31 March 2011 AZE——FZHAZ+-H 190,250 11,801 1,452 2,537 (17,687) 188,353
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17. RESERVES - continued
(a)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents
the difference between the aggregate net assets of the
subsidiaries acquired by the Company under the group
reorganisation in 2001 and the nominal amount of the

Company’s shares issued for the acquisition.

The Company had distributable reserves of
approximately HK$172,563,000 as at 31 March
2011 (2010: approximately 223,497,000). Under the
Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium account of the Company
is available for paying distributions or dividends
to shareholders subject to the provisions of its
Memorandum and Articles of Association and provided
that immediately following the distribution or dividend
the Company is able to pay its debt as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business. In accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association, dividends shall be
distributed out of the retained profits or other reserves,

including the share premium account, of the Company.

18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Sl

B 7% R MY R

31 March 2011 =Z2——H=A=+—H

17. GEfR — 48

(a)

RRABZBABBRIEARARER
CEERE-FCEEEARBREBZM
BLARACHEEFEREAQTMY
BRTZBROD2EEMERZEHE -

R-—ZZB——H=A=+—8 &2
=B A it 5k 5 % 49172,563,000
BT (ZZE—FF : 223,497,000
B c REMERS A EE (KB
) ERE REARAFAZEBER
AAREBERMARRT - B
BARIIKEBRATERENEE
HRBEEBBETIH2EE
BIARD T ZRDEEERAT D IKR
UREFXNIRAFRE - REARQ
FZAMERMAD  REEBEXQ
ARBREMIEMEE (BERA
BER) B

18. B 5 & H fih FE £ & IR

The Group
F%HE

2011 2010
—E——%F —E-EF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FHET FET
Trade payables B 5 EARIE 184,101 169,112
Bill payables BN EE 26,486 28,660
Accruals and other payables FEStE AR H M ENSFRIE 29,634 52,976
240,221 250,748
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18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 18. EHRHEMEFRIE -
- continued
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables at the DLTARBERAR2E ZENRERER
end of the reporting period: DHT
The Group
&M
2011 2010
—E——%F —E-ZF
HK$’' 000 HK$' 000
THET FET
0 to 90 days 0290H 146,183 101,448
91 to 180 days 91£180H 21,468 46,001
181 to 365 days 1812365H 7,224 11,177
Over 365 days HiB365H 9,226 10,486
184,101 169,112
The average credit period on purchases of certain goods is BEELTER2TFHEERHAH -
90 days.
Bill payables were secured by certain pledged bank deposits. ENEZEEUE TERBRITERELSIK
# o
19. BANK BORROWINGS 19. RITHESR
The Group
xEH
2011 2010
—E——£F —E-=EF
HK$' 000 HK$'000
THET FE T
Bank borrowings (Note (c)) RITEE (B2 () 49,194 47,310
Secured (Note (a)) BIRR (Hata) 37,933 35,910
Unsecured (Note (b)) IR (M b)) 11,261 11,400
49,194 47,310
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19. BANK BORROWINGS - continued

20.

i H#
ko

B 7% R MY R

31 March 2011 =&2——F=A=+—H

19. BITEE &

The Group
r. 3. |

2011 2010

—E——%F —E-EF

HK$'000 HK$' 000

TH#T FET
Carrying amount repayable: EEERESHE:
On demand or within one year RERR—FR -

shown under current liabilities AARBERE 49,194 47,310

Notes:

(@]

The secured bank borrowings were secured by land and
buildings owned by an independent third party and bear
interest ranged from 3.24% to 6.11% per annum. The
weighted average effective interest rate on the secured bank

borrowings is 4.8% per annum.

The unsecured bank borrowings bear interest at 6.4% per
annum. The weighted average effective interest rate on the

unsecured bank borrowings is 6.4% per annum.

The secured and unsecured bank borrowings were

denominated in Renminbi.

AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders are unsecured,

interest free and repayable on demand.

B EE -

BEERARITEEDUABIE=FHEEZ
T RIEFERIKE  WIRFFIFE3.24
EZ6.11EFE - BIEMRTEEZM
EFHBERFERERLISE -

EIRMBITEERTFNRCAEE - &
ERRITEE 2 MEFIERFFNES
6.4 -

BHEARERRRTEEGUARET
{E o

 RFEBRBERZKRT

RFEBRBRRZRERERF RER
AREREE -
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21. CONVERTIBLE NOTE 21. M@ RE

120

On 9 May 2007, the Group acquired the entire issued
share capital of Hero Vision at a consideration of
HK$157,300,000, the consideration of HK$33,000,000 were
satisfied by the issue of convertible note (the “Convertible
Note”). The Convertible Note matured at the second
anniversary of the issue date. During the year ended 31
March 2010, the maturity date of Convertible Note was
extend from 8 May 2009 to 9 May 2017. The conversion
price share was HK$1.90 (adjusted).

The Convertible Note contain three components, redemption
option, liability and equity elements. The equity element is
presented in equity heading “Convertible note reserve”. The

effective interest rate of the liability component is 10.97%.

The fair value of the liability component was calculated using
a market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible
bond. The residual amount, representing the value of the
equity conversion component, was included in shareholders’

equity in convertible note reserve.

R-ZZZLFRANB AEEURE
157,300,000 T WIBE R 2HMERTR
7% > /X {8 #33,000,00078 T 2 & B 2 1T
ARBRER (TREEE] -
BREZERBTEHET AMEFRNEG -
BE-Z-TF=ZA=+—BLEFE"
THRREEZIBECEH_ZTAFE
BNBEEZE-T—+tFHRANA-&
BRI ER1.908 T (LRAE)

EEEE - BERE
E:%Bﬁ°*§§§5 AR AR TR
BREIETE - 86GH s 2BRAZE
A10.97F -

BEBIZLAFEDUASEFRTRRE
ZemBNERAE NGBS EAEDE
BEszEBE DI ATRREERFE
ZBRRERA °
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21. CONVERTIBLE NOTE - continued 21. JIRERRE &
The Convertible Note recognised in the consolidated REETBRRRERAZABRREEZ
statement of financial position was calculated as follows: HEMT
The Group and
the Company
FRERFELT
HK$' 000
FHET
Fair value of Convertible Note issued RZEZELFRANBHETZ
on 9 May 2007 ARREREZAFE 54,750
Less: Derivative financial instruments W PTESRmITA 514
Equity component R (25,125)
Liability component on initial recognition R-ZEZELFHAIAE
and amortised cost at 9 May 2007 TR ZEED D REHERA 30,139
Interest expense FER X 1,828
Interest payable EAFRE (593)
Amortised cost at 31 March 2008 REZBZENF=ZA=ZT+T—HZEBHEEL 31,374
Interest expense FEBEX 1,631
Interest payable EARE (506)
Redemption during the year FRER (26,030)
Amortised cost at 31 March 2009 REZZBZEAF=ZA=+T—HZEHEELX 6,469
Interest expense FMERFX 31
Extinguishment of Convertible Note M AR R R B (6,500)
Liability component recognised ERAZEET S 3,462
Interest expense FERAX 337
Interest payable FE A3 FI 2 (58)
Amortised cost at 31 March 2010 RIE—ZSF=—A=+—H2ZEHERK 3,741
Interest expense FERAX 417
Interest payable S F B (189)
At 31 March 2011 BW-—Z=—%=RB=+—H 3,969
As at 31 March 2011, the principal amount of Convertible R-ZB——F=A=+—H  A/ZzRE
Note was HK$6,500,000 (2010: HK$6,500,000). > A% 3 5H65000008T (CE—2
% 16,500,000/ 7T) °
Interest expense on the Convertible Note is calculated using TR EE 2 ERXTIERASERAE E
the effective interest method by applying the effective RIBEEHN D Z2ERFZEI097ESTE
interest rate of 10.97% to the liability component.
ZEEEEEBBAERAQA 121
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22. PROMISSORY NOTE

On 8 March 2010, the Company issued promissory
note (the “Promissory Note”) in a principal amount of
HK$290,000,000 due on 7 March 2020. The Promissory
Note was issued for acquiring the entire issued share capital
of Nurture Fit Limited and bear interest at 1% per annum,
payable semi-annually in arrears. The effective interest rate is

3%.

22. RRERE
R-ZBE-—ZE=AN\B XAABTE
£ %8290,000,0008 TR=E=_FF =4
Tt HB B EALEE ((ALEE]) o &
AREEDAWBEESRATEINC B
TRAMET  REMNRIEFE  8¥
FRE—IR - BEMEAIE -

The Group and
the Company

ERERFELT

HK$' 000

FET

At 1 April 2009 R-ZEZhFMNA—H =
Fair value of Promissory Note issued R-ZE-—ZF=ANBEITZ

on 8 March 2010 ERAZEEZAFE 240,211

Interest expense FERZ 453

Interest payable EARE (182)

At 31 March 2010 and 1 April 2010 R=Z-ZFF=B=+—H

R=—ZE-TFMA—H 240,482

Interest expense FE X 6,704

Interest payable EARE (2,684)

Redemption during the year (Note) REREL (M) (50,319)

At 31 March 2011 R-Z——F=A=+—H 194,183

Note:

During the year ended 31 March 2011, part of Promissory Note with
a principal amount of HK$60,000,000 was early repaid. A loss of
approximately HK$9,681,000 was recognised in the consolidated

statement in comprehensive income.

As at 31 March 2011, the principal amount of Promissory Note was
HK$230,000,000 (2010: HK$290,000,000).

23. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

(a) Pre-listing share options

Pursuant to the pre-listing share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 20 April 2002, the
Company may grant options at HK$1 per offer to any
directors, employees, consultants, and advisors of the
Company or its subsidiaries, for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to them, to subscribe for shares in
the Company. All of these options have duration of 10
years from and including 10 May 2002 subject to the

terms of the scheme.

B EE -

RBEZE-Z——F=A=+—-HLEFE" B
12 B EE[E A £ 860,000,000 T 2 O AR E
B -ERGEEEHEBEKETERA,681,000
BILZEE -

RZE——FE=HA=1+—H ALEEZ
7K £ ¥4 £4230,000,0008 T (=2 —FF :
290,000,0005& 7T) ©

23. SRR iERT®

(a) LRIRRAR4E
REARAR-ZBE-FEA-T
Az Emra B RESTE A2
A A LA IR IR B IR R S W E B
AZREAAQAREMBEAR 2
ENES - B8 EXEEREMS
REATRBARTDRG 2BRE -
LUERR Eaf A £ o RIBEFBIRRR
FEZEERER-_ZZT_F1A
TH(BEZA) BH0FABY -
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23. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued
(a) Pre-listing share options — continued

Sl

Details of the movements in the number of share
options during the year under the Company’s pre-
listing share options scheme which are exercisable
in three equal trenches from 10 November 2002,
May 2003 and 10 May 2004, respectively, to 24 April
2012 at an exercise price of HK$2.35 (adjusted) (2010:

HK$2.35 (adjusted)) per share are as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R MY &
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23. iRRR MRt B -8

(a)

L v A B 4 — 4
AAREMAIBRESEET 2B
BREBERETNFEZEZBFHEN
T ZEEREATIINR-_ZZ—
F+—A+H —ZTZ=FHAT
AR-—ZEENFREATHE=Z
——FMA=-+HMAHE 2=t
T BHRAUTEHEEMESE TR
BEAESR235BT (KAR) (=T
—ZF 2358w (KHEAE)) :

Number of share options

RERERE
Outstanding Adjustment Outstanding
at 31 March during at 31 March
Type of participants 2010 the year 2011 Date of grant
R-B—BF R-8——%F
=B=+—H =R=+—H
Z2HEER A KT FHAE Al R A1T {8 S H B
(Notes)
(Htzt)
Former advisor of the Group 1,371,056 (1,228,390) 142,666 25 April 2002
A EE AR —2ECR
A=+AH
Former employees of the Group 910,314 (815,203) 95,111 25 April 2002
AEERES —ET_F
MA=+H&A
Total 2,281,370 (2,043,593) 237,777
st
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.245 HK$2.105 HK$2.350
MEFHTREE 0.245% 7T 2.1058 7T 2.350%& T

The pre-listing share options outstanding at 31 March
2011 had weighted average remaining contractual life
of 1.07 years (2010: 2.07 years).

R=B——F=ZA=+—RB2ZK1T
FEMmAIEREZINEFLRGE
HEPRB1.07F (ZE—-FF :2.07
F) o
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23. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

(a)

(b)

Pre-listing share options — continued

Notes:

During the year ended 31 March 2011,

completed the Rights Issue and Share Consolidation. Pursuant

the Company

to the terms of the pre-listing share options schemes, the

exercise price of the share options were adjusted accordingly.

Post-listing share options

Pursuant to the post-listing share option scheme
also adopted by the Company on 20 April 2002, the
Company may grant options at HK$1 per offer to any
directors, employees, any supplier of goods or services,
any customers, any person or entity that provides
research, development or other technical support or
any shareholder of the Group or any investee or any
holder of any securities issued by any member of the
Group or any investee, for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to them, to subscribe for shares in
the Company. The total number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the post-listing
share option scheme shall not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time.
No participant shall be granted an option, if exercise in
full, would result in the total number of shares already
issued under all the options granted to him or her that
are for the time being subsisting and unexercised in
any 12-month period would exceed 1% of the total
number of shares in issue. The exercise price of the
share will be determined at the higher of the average
of closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange
on the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of grant of the options; the closing price of the
shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;
and the nominal value of the shares. The share options
are exercisable for a period not later than 10 years

from the date of grant.

23. iRRR MRt B -8

(a)

(b)

& v il B B A - 4R

CER
BE=®-—F=AStHLTE.
AATRBEBRRBBE G o BRI LT

Hu,ﬂﬁﬂﬁffE%Jr%JZﬂ%%k
2 EEEHFE -

BRI ZITRE

L % Rl B 4

BERAARAR-BE-_FMNA=+
Bz EmEBRESTS > KO
B A LA IE 4R M B AR A R WA
BIzREBERAEBEFTES &
E-EmdRBHER - FEFUR
RAUME HEREMRMTXEZ
ATHER  EAEEHEMZR
EER2EMRRIAETEEEMK
ERRREREERMBITHESZ
BREARLARBEARRARD 2B
BRfE AEB LA - RIELET
BERESITTRECEREYS
ReBROHBEFREEBAAAT
RRERTRAI0% - MR EHITE
% BEIREAT+=EFHER
BET-S2HEZ2HNERE
FEAERITEZBREMBITR
AFRITZROBLE  BACSEHT
ROBE1%  BIFEmZSEER
HERE BREZITEEEAR
HREERHBREDBAITMEAR
SHEBIMzFHRTE - BH
REHBRERBEBRIAMZE S
BERRAEEBE=EFZRSE B
IREFNE L B ERI0FRNITHE -
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23. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued 23. FEBRHERT B — 48
(b) Post-listing share options - continued (b) LEhikMSRRE— &
Details of the movements in the number of share FRNEREHEEEHFBOT :

options during the year are as follows:

Number of share options
BRERA
Outstanding
and
Outstanding Granted Exercised  Adjustment  Cancelled  exercisable Exercise
at 31 March during during during during  at 31 March price
Type of participants 2010 the year the year the year the year 2011 Date of grant per share Exercise period
(adjusted)
RIB-—-%
RZS-2% =B=+-H
ZA=+-H RFT# 11
SHEER RETE  FARH EMTHE ERAE  EMHB RUTAE #HAM TERE TR
(BRE)
Directors
1 3
Mr. Yung Kwok Leong 17,000,000 - - (15,300,000) - 1,700,000 30 March 2009 HK$0.5 30 September 2009
to 29 March 2019
SESEE ZEZENE  05ER “EINE
ZR=tH AA=1HE
“E-NE
ZA=thA
Mr. Zheng Gang 17,000,000 - (9,000,000  (7,200,000) - 800,000 30 March 2009  HK$0.5 30 September 2009
to 29 March 2019
BEs ZREAE 0S53R ZETNE
ZA=1H hA=THE
ZE-nE
=A=thA
27,000,000 - - (24,185,916) - 2,814,084 18 March 2010 HK$1.12 23 March 2010 to
22 March 2015
“E-2E  112Bn “E-%%
=AtNR ZR=t=R%
—2-1f%
=B=t=H
Mr. Chen Jin Shan 17,000,000 - - (15,300,000) - 1,700,000 30 March 2009 HK$0.5 30 September 2009
to 29 March 2019
Relts ZEENE 05ER “EENF
ZA=t1H hAZTEE
“E-NE
ZA=thA
20,000,000 - - (17,915,493 - 2,084,507  18March 2010  HK$1.12 23 March 2010 to
22 March 2015
“B-FF  1124R “B-%F
=ATNAH =ZA-t=HEZ
—E-RE
=ZB=t=H
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23. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued 23. BBk E -8
(b) Post-listing share options — continued (b) LEhikMSRRE— &
Number of share options
BRENE
Outstanding
and
Outstanding Granted Exercised  Adjustment  Cancelled  exercisable Exercise
at 31 March during during during during  at 31 March price
Type of participants 2010 the year the year the year the year 2011 Date of grant per share Exercise period
(adjusted)
RZ8-—-%
RZ8-3% =A=t-H
ZA=+-H BARTE .14
SHEFR RETE  FARH EMTHE ERAE  EAEE  RUTAE #HAM ERE fTEH
(#R%)
Dr. Jiang Tao 8,000,000 = - (7,200,000) = 800,000 30 March 2009  HK$0.5 30 September 2009
to 29 March 2019
EREL ZEEAE 05ER ZERNE
ZA=1H hB=1+HE
“Z-hf
ZB=thH
15,000,000 - - (13,436,620) - 1,563,380 18 March 2010 HK$1.12 23 March 2010 to
22 March 2015
“E-FE 1R ZE-ZF
=A+NA ZA-t=REZ
“E-1E&
ZA-tZH
Dr. Huang Jiaging 10,000,000 - - (9,000,000) - 1,000,000 30 March 2009 HK$0.5 30 September 2009
t0 29 March 2014
EMEEE ZETNE 05ER ZEINE
=A=tH hB=1+HE
“E-pfF
ZA=tNA
3,000,000 = - (2,687,324) = 312,676 18 March 2010 HK$1.12 23 March 2010 to
22 March 2015
Z2-RE  112ER “Z2-%F
ZATNA ZA=tzZHEZ
“Z-1f
=A-tZH
Mr. Weng Jiaxing 19,000,000 - - (17,019,718) - 1,980,282 18 March 2010  HK$1.12 23 March 2010 to
22March2015
SMELLE ZE-3F  1.12%ER -E-%f
=AtNR =A=t=HEZ
“Z-1f
ZR-tZH
153,000,000 - (9,000,000) (129,245,071) - 14,754,929
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23. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued 23. BBk E -8
(b) Post-listing share options — continued (b) LEhikMSRRE— &
Number of share options
BRENE
Outstanding
and
Outstanding Granted Exercised  Adjustment  Cancelled  exercisable Exercise
at 31 March during during during during  at 31 March price
Type of participants 2010 the year the year the year the year 2011 Date of grant per share Exercise period
(adjusted)
RZ8-—-%
RZ8-3% =A=t-H
ZA=+-H BRTE .14
SHEFR RETE  FARH EMTHE ERAE  EAEE  RUTAOE BHAM ERE fTEH
(#R%)

Employees and 11,027,500 = - (9,878,155 = 1,149,345 13 July 2006 HK$3.61 13 July 2006 to
consultants of 12 July 2016
the Group

SEREERER ZZERE 361ER ZEERE

tA+=A tAt=HE
“E-RE
tA+t=H
20,833,333 - - (18,661,972) - 2,171,361 21 Mar2007  HK$2.94 21 March 2007 to
20 March 2017
ZBRLE  Q%ER “ERLE
ZA=t-H ZR=t-BE
“E-t&
=A=tH
102,000,000 - (16,800,000)  (76,680,000) (100,000 8,420,000 30 March 2009  HK$0.5 30 September 2009
to 29 March 2014
ZEENE 0SB “Z2ENF
ZA=1H hB=1+HE
“E-mE
ZB=thH
194,000,000 - - (173,780,281) (156,338) 20,063,381 18 March 2010 HK$1.12 23 March 2010 to
22 March 2015
“E-ZE 11ER ZE-RE
=AtNA ZA=t+=HE
—E-1f
=ZA-tZH
480,860,833 - (25,800,000) (408,245,479) (256,338) 46,559,016

Weighted average
exercise price HK$0.107 - HK$05  HK$0.974  HK$0.909  HK$1.081

MEFHTER 0.107%7% - 058 0974  0909BT  1.081H%

The post-listing share options outstanding at 31 March
2011 had weighted average remaining contractual life
of 5.35 (2010: 6.52) years.

i

i
Ny
o it
-
©H®

a

il
>
|

RZEBE——F=A=+—HZK1T
FrEmEBREZNETERGE
HER A535F (ZF—ZF :6.52
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23. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued
(b) Post-listing share options — continued

Notes:

0)

(if)

(iii)

The Group recognises the fair value of share options
granted as an expense in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income when they were granted with
a corresponding increase being recognised in share-
based payment reserve. The employee share-based
payment reserve is transferred to share capital and
share premium, together with the exercise price, when
the option holder exercises its rights. As a transitional
provision, the cost of share option granted after 7
November 2002 and had not yet vested on 1 January
2005 were expensed retrospectively in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income of the respective
During the year ended 31 March 2011,
approximately HK$5,981,000 (2010: HK$5,617,000)

share-based payment expenses were recognised.

periods.

Share options granted under the pre-listing share
options scheme are not expensed as the options were
all granted and vested before 7 November 2002 and

not subject to requirements of HKFRS 2.

The estimated fair value of each option granted on
13 July 2006, 24 July 2006, 21 March 2007, 30
March 2009 and 18 March 2010 are approximately
HK$0.0226, HK$0.0188, HK$0.0384,
HK$0.012 to HK$0.021 and range from HK$0.036 to
HK$0.062 respectively.

range from

23. BixHERIE 1A

(b)

P &E -

(i)

(if)

(iii)

I EMAE &

AEEREBRERESERSEBEERA
BREELHBREZLAFELASEL I
AR AR B B 2 R B R TR R AR FE
B BEURDAER 2 FREED
REREFBATECEERRERT
FEERERARRKRGEE - FRBE
MHEX > RZEE-F+—AEAER
H BR=ZZRF-—A—HBHARE
ZERERADREEHBZEAEEE
BREANEBHIIR REBE-Z2——F
ZA=1+—HLEEFE » £5981,000% T
(ZZ—F% :5,617,00087T) ARAD B
HEARzZEIZE FER -

HRRIE Em AR SR 2B R
EAR-ZEZ2_F+-AtRAMRHK
TURE UTIRBEBUBHRREINSE
255 FRER - MW E T SR LS BIRAE -

R-ZZBZEXFLA+T=H - Z22RE
tAZ+WME - —EELF=A=1+—
B —ZZhF=A=+HK=-Z—Z
F=Z=A+N\BEHZERBEREZL
STAFEDBIKBE0.022658 T > 0.0188
It~ 0.0384%8 7t~ N F0.012B T E
0.02178 7t & /1 F0.0367% Tt £0.06278

JC ©
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B 7% R MY &

31 March 2011 =&2——F=A=+—H

23. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued 23. MERR AT E — 4R
(b) Post-listing share options - continued (b) LEhikMSRRE— &
Notes: — continued MyeE : —%&
(i) - continued (iy —#&
The fair values were calculated using the Binomial AFEBIU-—ERAEEEERTE -
option pricing model. The inputs into the model were as HZEXBAZESNT ¢
follows:

Share option grant date

WERESHAY

Date of grant 13 July 2006 24 July 2006 21 March 2007 30 March 2009 18 March 2010

ZE2EZX i 1N —22tE k1 83 —Z-2%
R AR tA+=B +tA=+HEBE =A=+-H =A=tH =A+NH
Stock asset price ROEEE HK$0.83# T  HK$0.8287  HK$0.51BT  HKS0.03Bx  HKS0.098% 7t
Exercise price 7fEE HK$0.62738 7t HK$0.627%8 7T HK$0.518 T HK$0.05%7T  HK$0.117%8 7T
Expected volatility BERE 57.06% 44.89% 119.62% 100.13% 95.53%
Risk-free rate ERBEE 3.984% 3.830% 3.682% 1.62% 1.68%
Expected dividend yield TR S B3R 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
The volatility measured at the standard deviation of BRIEERER R EERETE ZKIE
expected share price returns is based on statistical DIREBRERHAN—F2E5HERH
analysis of daily prices over the one year immediately Bofe LMAEIRERBRESNR
preceding the grant date. The above calculation is HAZEERER EFE RGBS
based on the assumption that there is no material KB ZEWHFEKREEBER -
difference between the expected volatility over the
whole life of the options and the historical volatility of
the shares set out as above.
Because the Binomial option pricing model requires HR-_EANREEEAZTESETS
the input of highly subjective assumptions, including 2R BERMER 2RE  WER
the volatility of share price, changes in subjective BRR2ESEIREE RS ENFENMGEE o

input assumptions can materially affect the fair value

estimate.
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31 March 2011 =&2——$=A=+—H

23. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued 23. BB AT B — 4R
(b) Post-listing share options - continued (b) LEhikMSRRE— &
Notes: — continued MisE : —#&
(iv)  As at 31 March 2011, 35,031,692 (2010: 262,760,833) vy R-—T——&=g=+-—8
share options are exercisable. AFTEZEREZE A

35,031,692 (= — & & :
262,760,83317) °

(v) In accordance with the term’s of share-based (v) REUROGAEEHRZHEZER
arrangement, the share options granted on 30 March R-ZEBEBEANFE=A=+HEHN
2009 are exercisable in the following manner: BRI IR AT HITHE
(@ up to 40% of the share options granted to (@) BRBAI0NEREFEEERA

each grantee shall be exercisable on or after 30 ZERETE=ZZHEH

September 2009 to 30 March 2010; B=1THHZRE=Z-—=%
F=ZA=1THTE:

(b)  up to further 30% of the share options granted (b) ZEIMRZ30%ERFEERER

to each grantee shall be exercisable on or after ARZEREATE-_Z—ZF

31 March 2010 to 30 March 2011; and ZSA=t+T—HRZEE=Z

——HE=ZA=1+HTE R

(© all the remaining 30% of the share options (0 ZIEHEBERT0%DRF &
granted to each grantee shall be exercisable on or RAZBREITE=-Z——
after 31 March 2011 to 30 March 2012, and in F=A=+—Haiz’kE =
each case, not later than 29 March 2019. E—_F=A=+HTE

EREERTFEER=F
—hE=ZA=thBAfTfE-
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23. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued
(b) Post-listing share options — continued

Notes: — continued

(vi)

(viii)

i H#

ko
N B8
o it
= A

In accordance with the term’s of share-based

arrangement, the share options granted on 18 March

2010 are exercisable in the following manner:

(a)

(@)

up to 40% of the share options granted to each
grantee shall be exercisable on or after 23 March
2010 to 22 March 2011;

up to further 20% of the share options granted
to each grantee shall be exercisable on or after
23 March 2011 to 22 March 2012;

up to further 20% of the share options granted
to each grantee shall be exercisable on or after
23 March 2012 to 22 March 2013; and

all the remaining 20% of the share options
granted to each grantee shall be exercisable on or
after 23 March 2013 to 22 March 2014, and in
each case, not later than 22 March 2015.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Company

completed the Rights Issue and Share Consolidation.

Pursuant to the terms of the post-listing share options

schemes, the exercise price of the share options were

adjusted accordingly.

(vii)

B 7% R MY &

31 March 2011 =&2——F=A=+—H

23. BixHERIE 1A

(b) LThkRBARE — &
MisE - — 4

(vi) RIBUURD B E = P2 R

R-ZZ—ZF=ZF+N\BAHELZ
BRETRATARTRE

(a)

BRZAONERETFEREA
ZEREATR_Z—ZTF=
AZ+=RmizEZEZz_%
——FE=ZA=-+=HTE;

IR Z20% 0BT EER
AREBREITE-_Z——%F
ZSACt=AZ%z®E=ZF
——F=H=+=A17f;

FIRZ20%C & F § &
RAZBREITE=-Z—=
FZAZ-+=HHZEE=
E-—Z=H=ZHA=+=HfT
&

2R T20%E R FEERE
AZBREITE-Z—=F
SA-tT=AgzEE=Z
—mE=A=-+=H1TfE
HAZERTREER=-F
—BEF=A-+t-HfTfE-

BE-ZE——F=-A=+—HILEE"
AABTERBRBERBROEH - RIELT

BIBIRAERT B2 R -

BREZTEE

2 EEERFE -
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B 7% R M R

31 March 2011 =&2——$=A=+—H

24. TURNOVER AND OTHER REVENUE 24, EXREREMIE
Turnover represents the aggregate of the net amounts EEBREAMESERMEBER DHEY - 1R
received and receivable from third parties in connection with HEstERREUAREERER &8
the retail and wholesale and distribution of pharmaceutical REEWEERE=FH 2 FBRIELEE o K
products, provision of general hospital services and EECEXBEREMBEZOMAT :

healthcare and hospital management services. An analysis of

the Group’s turnover and other revenue is as follows:

2011 2010
—ZE——%5 —E-ZF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TFTHET FHET
Turnover: BEH:
Retail of pharmaceutical products HBYEE 150,549 9,784
Wholesale and distribution of EYIR R 28
pharmaceutical products 1,204,580 43,071
Provision of general hospital services RUGSHEERRE 114,140 125,360
Provision of healthcare and hospital RHEERER
management services EER% 1,289 1,550
Advertising income & & WA 20,310 =
1,490,868 179,765
Other revenue: Hthdr & :
Interest income F B U A 3,540 532
Rental income HEWA 314 19
Compensation income AEBA 5,291 -
Sundry income HIEU A 1,466 786
10,611 1,337
132 Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited
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Bt 7% ¥R 3= B &

31 March 2011 =Z2——H=A=+—H

25. PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS 25. BEXBRT (B#R)
Profit/(loss) from operations has been arrived at after BEEBAET (BR) DEMNRKRTIIER
charging: H#&®/H:

2011 2010
—2——% —E-FF
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
THET FHBT
Directors’ remuneration (Note 26) BE=ME (HE26) 2,700 2,374
Share-based payment expenses DR AER NS 5,981 5,617
Other staff’s retirement benefits Hih 8 T 2 RAKEF
scheme contributions sTEI{E R 6,359 3,047
Other staff costs HME T A 46,944 25,682
61,984 36,720
Auditors’ remuneration 1Z E A BN & 900 1,050
Provision for impairment losses of B R HAEKRRIE
trade and other receivables WEEERE 1,882 489
Cost of goods sold EEHAK 1,280,906 53,625
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments &+ 78 & 7X 18 # 4 1,143 977
Depreciation of property, plant and Y- -BERRZEBTE
equipment — owned by the Group -BAEEEE 11,188 11,200
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BER
plant and equipment REZEE 157 28
Operating lease rentals in respect of BT REFZ
land and buildings KeHERS 14,592 5,378
Loss on early redemption of REBRALZEEZER
promissory note 9,681 -
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMWB AR ZEE = 23,185
Impairment loss on goodwill EmEREEE = 171,422
and after crediting: BatA
Other income: HA -
Net exchange gain B W U s F 5 - 230
Change in fair value of investment REMEATFERZY
properties 231 -
Change in fair value of derivative MESMIAEAFEESH
financial instruments 336 93
Reversal of trade and other payables B R HEMBENKIERE 166 138
733 461

Sl
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26. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 26. EEE&
The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31 REENHE-SE——ER-E—FF
March 2011 and 2010 are set out below: =A=t—HLEFEZFMERET
T
Retirement
Salaries and Share-based benefits scheme
Fees other benefits payment expenses contributions Total
fig FeRAMRT URHEERZARAY  BHRIHBER &t
201 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
~%—-% -“2-%f “8--% -%-%% Z%--§ -“T-%f Z8-—-§ -%-%F Z%--§ -3-%%
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
T TERL TER Thn THET ThR TET Thn THET TEn
Executive directors HNES
Yung Kwok Leong fES
(“Mr. Yung") (EEp ) - - 708 708 82 145 12 12 802 865
Shum Ngai Pan HRE(R-BENE
(retired on 30 July 2009)  tA=1RRE{E) - - - 57 - - - 3 - 60
Chen Jin Shan Rel - - 60 60 453 444 - - 513 504
Jiang Tao EE - - 360 360 317 293 - - 677 653
Zheng Gang 5] - - 768 748 583 549 1 12 1,363 1,309
Weng Jiaxing (appointed BB (R=E-F%
on 26 March 2010) ZA-tAREZH) = - 348 4 352 284 12 - 712 288
Huang Jiaging (appointed ~ EME (R=ZEZNE
on 30 July 2009) tA=T+REER) - - 120 80 104 130 - - 24 210
- S 236 2017 1891 1,845 3 7 aMm 3,889
Non-executive director ~ F#TEE
Wong Yu Man, James IHR - - 114 114 - - 6 6 120 120
Independent non- BUFHTES
executive directors
Hsu William Shiu Foo BEX(M=ZZNE
(retired on 30 July 2009)  tA=TREf{) - 35 - - - - - - - 35
Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne EEE 60 60 - - - - - - 60 60
Yu Chai Mei FEE(R-ZENE
(retired on 30 July 2009)  tA=THEHE) - 35 - - - - - - - 35
Hu Shanlian (appointed ~ #EH (R=EENE
on 30 July 2009) tA=tBEEH) 60 40 - - - - - - 60 40
Lu Chuanzhen (appointed ~ BEE (R=ZZhE
on 30 July 2009) tB=+RAEEf) 60 40 - = = = = = 60 40
180 210 - - - - - - 180 210
180 210 2,478 2,131 1,891 1,845 42 33 4,591 4219

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to

the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the

Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the

directors has waived any emoluments during the year.

REAFE AEBIELESZTHE
LRSI EMBAEERE[MBRER
BREAEE BEEERAFEREEM
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27. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

i H#

The five highest paid employees during the year included
three (2010: three) directors. Details of whose remuneration
are set out in Note 26 to the consolidated financial

statements.

For the year ended 31 March 2011, the details of the
remuneration of the remaining two (2010: two) non-

directors, highest paid employee are as follows:

B 7% R M &

31 March 2011 =&2——F=A=+—H

27. BRHM&
FREERAHESBE=% (2%
FZR)EE - HEZHEFERRNE
BB |ERM 26 -

BZE-_T——F=A=+—-ALFE"
BRTME(ZZE—ZF WMB)FESZ
BeHEEZMESFBENT ¢

2011 2010

—E——%f —E-E2F

HK$’'000 HK$' 000

T#xT FE&T

Basic salaries and allowances EARFH & R 1,201 1,146
Retirement benefits scheme ERTE R ET B R

contributions 24 24

1,225 1,170

None of the above five highest paid individuals received

emoluments in excess of HK$1 million.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the non-director, highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for

loss of office.

LEFEZBEHFALTWE S FE
381,000,000 7T °

REAFE  AEEXEQFES &S
FALTZAME ARSI EMBERTER
EAMBERSHBBAHE -
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31 March 2011 =&2——F=A=+—H

28. FINANCE COSTS 28. MR
2011 2010
—S——% —E-ZF
HK$’' 000 HK$’ 000
TH#T FERT
Interest on: LUTIEEZHE :
— bank borrowings wholly repayable -~ ARAFERE2HEEZ
within five years IRITIEE 4,387 476
— imputed interest on convertible note =~ —AIBREE ZHEEF S 417 368
— imputed interest on promissory note —EAREBZEERNE 6,704 453
11,508 1,297
29. TAXATION 29. RIF

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in
the consolidated financial statements as the Group incurred
a taxation loss for the year. Provision on profits assessable
elsewhere has been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing
in the countries in which the Group operates, based on

existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect

HRAEERAFEEEHRBER B
A BEREHBRRARBTBFE
EHEE Httib B 2 BRBUEF TR
BAKEXBRERR 2RTEN 2
EREMREMBITHRAE -

thereof.
2011 2010
—E——%F —E-EF
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
THET FET
Current taxation: BIEABLIA :
Provision for the year REERE
— The PRC —HE 21,259 1,769
Under provision in prior year: BEFEBEBETER
- The PRC — 320 -
Deferred tax recognised FRERZIEL
during the year (Note 35) i IE (FfF5E35) (38) (46)
21,541 1,723

Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited
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29. TAXATION - continued

The charge for the year is reconciled to the profit/
(loss) before taxation per the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as follows:

29. RIR—#&

AEEXHERS ZHEBESRASIBRK
BIER) (B18) 2HRNOT ¢

For the year ended 31 March 2011 BE_Z——=-A=+—HILEE

i H#

Hong Kong The PRC Total
- HE st
HKS$' 000 %  HKS$'000 %  HKS$'000 %
TET TET TET
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRBiA (B518) &R (26,621) 85,372 58,751
Tax at applicable income tax rate  RERRESHEFEZ (4,392) (16.5) 21,343 25.0 16,951 28.9
B
Tax effect of expenses and RAMB R BAEM
income not deductible or ZBEX KRB
taxable for tax purposes 2R E 2,161 8.2 (958) (1.1) 1,203 2.1
Tax effect of under-provision BETEZREZE - - 320 0.4 320 0.5
Tax effect of tax losses not WRERZHEBEZ
recognised BETE 2,193 8.2 874 1.0 3,067 5.2
Tax charge and effective AEEHELHER
tax rate for the year BEBRBE (38) (0.1) 21,579 253 21,541 36.7
For the year ended 31 March 2010 BE-_Z-—ZEF=A=+—HLFE
Hong Kong The PRC Total
EE H wst
HK$' 000 %  HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %
TBT TET TET
(Loss)/profit before taxation BREiAL (B518) &R (214,137) 9,224 (204,913)
Tax at applicable income tax rate  ZEAFEHRERHEZ (35,333) (16.5) 2,306 25.0  (33,027) (16.1)
BE
Tax effect of expenses and FAMHRBEAD
income not deductible or ZBEZRBA
taxable for tax purposes ZHBTE 32,107 15.0 (537) (5.8) 31,570 15.4
Tax effect of tax losses not TERERZHEREZ
recognised BEzE 3,180 1.5 - - 3,180 1.5
Tax charge and effective AEEHELHR
tax rate for the year ERB=E (46) = 1,769 19.2 1,723 0.8
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31 March 2011 =2——H#=A=+—H

30. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE 30. 2 FEE AE 5B

COMPANY
For the year ended 31 March 2011, net loss of the Company BEZ—_FE——F=HA=t+—HLFE "
of approximately HK$14,197,000 (2010: HK$332,382,000) RNANR ZEIEFEE414,197,0008 5T (=
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the E—F 5 :332,382,000/8 T) B 5t A
Company. NE B ERE o

31. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 31. SR EF (BR)
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per AATEEAELEREARBEERN
share attributable to owners of the Company is based on the (BE8) IREBUTHETE :

following data:

2011 2010
—E——%F —E-ZF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TFHET FET
Earnings a2
Profit/(loss) for the purpose of ALUGESREARBERT -
basic and diluted earnings/(loss) (B#E) 2&%F, (F#E)
per share
h)r' g — Profit/(loss) for the year attributable —ARAREEEELERFE
: to the owners of the Company = (Ei1E) 31,456 (211,283)
2011 2010
—E——%F —E-ZF
(restated)
€<=¢7))
Number of shares BH#E
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ AEUGTESREXREF] (FE)
shares for the purpose of basic ZEBRMEFIIE
earnings/(loss) per share
— Ordinary shares in issue —ERITEAR 478,393,046 454,770,480
— Preference shares in issue —-BRITELIR 560,865,623 30,897,614

1,039,258,669 485,668,094
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: EE#BBEZEBR 2 £ !
— Share options issued by the Company — —ZN2 7] 31T 2 BB IR & 5,885,568 =

Weighted average number of ordinary ~ AUFGTESREBZRA(EHE)
shares for the purpose of diluted ZEERMETEE
earnings/(loss) per share 1,045,144,237 485,668,094
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31.

32.

33.

Sl

Notes to the Financial Statements

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE - continued
The weighted average number of ordinary shares for
the year ended 31 March 2010 was adjusted for the
effect of the Rights Issue and Share Consolidation from
4,800,514,916 to 485,668,094.

The calculation of diluted earning per share did not assumed
the exercise of the Convertible Note existed at 31 March
2011 as the exercise of the Convertible Note would increase

earnings per share, therefore anti-dilutive.

The calculation of diluted loss per share did not assume the
exercise of the Convertible Note and share options existed at
31 March 2010 as the exercise of the Convertible Note and
share options would reduce loss per share, therefore anti-

dilutive.

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March 2011 (2010:
Nil).

PLEDGED ASSETS

At 31 March 2011 and 2010, certain bank deposits, prepaid
lease payments (Note 7) and investment properties (Note 8)
of the Group were pledged as collateral for certain banking

facilities granted to the Group and independent third party.

At 31 March 2011 and 2010, the Company had not pledged

any assets at the end of the reporting period.

31.

32.

33.

B 7% R MY R

31 March 2011 =Z2——H=A=+—H

sSREH (HR) &

HAEBREROEHEEBE-Z—ZF=
B=+t—BLEEZEBEMETLIH AR
4,800,514,916 R 7% %485,668,094 % ©

AEEREERANSIEBBRITENS
E-—H=-A=1+—-HEFEZTER
EE RTETRREBEESERAEF
B EmEREREELE -

AEHERBEFEARTEBBRRITERS
T-ZHE-A=1+—-HEFEZTER
SEREBERE BTEIRRIEERE
RESSEREERD - EmHER R
e o

L=

BB
EETEEREE_E——H=A=1+—
AEFERFEMRE (ZE-FF:
#) -

HEEH
R-ZEB-——FR-Z-ZEF=ZR=+—
B REEETFRITER  BLHERE
(MiaE7) RIRE W% (KMIzE8) B Wik 1F
EAREERBLE=FERE TR
AEZ K m o

R-B-——FR-B-BF=A=+—
B ARAREEHRLFEDETE
EO
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34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

On 14 September 2010, the Group entered into a
sale and purchase agreement that the Group agreed
to sell the entire issued share capital of Large Forever
Group Limited and its subsidiaries to an independent
third party of the Group for a total consideration of
HK$6,700,000. The disposal was completed on 14
September 2010.

Summary of the effects of the disposal of subsidiaries
are as follows:

34. HEMEB 2R

(a)

R-ZE—ZFFhA+THMA  AEH
FV—EEEWZ Bl K5
5 = LA K {E6,700,00058 T @ AN &
B—-E2BUFE=—"FHEEKXKEES
RAAREMBAREZHE BITR
Ko HEZHER-_Z—ZFNA
+MHEZEK

HEMBAR 2K EHMMT ¢

HK$' 000
FE T
Net assets disposed of: FTHECEEFRE:
Property, plant and equipment M- BERRZE 5,576
Cash and bank balances Be RIBITEE 1,116
Trade and other receivables and deposits ZEZREMEWFIERIZRS 6,246
Inventories 78 545
Trade and other payables B REMENFE (7,206)
6,277
Non-controlling interests R ER (502)
Release of translation reserve R BREE X 15 (30)
Gain on disposal HE 2z & 955
6,700
Satisfied by: LTHAERZA
Cash BHE 6,700
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEZRERAFEE
Cash consideration RENE 6,700
Cash and bank balances disposed FTHEZRERIBITER (1,116)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents BERBEESLEEEERAFHE 5,584

For the period from 1 April 2010 to the date of
disposal, the above subsidiaries were engaged in
provision of general hospital services. The turnover
contributed by the subsidiaries was approximately
HK$5,868,000 and loss of approximately HK$210,000
has recognised in the Group's profit for the year ended
31 March 2011.

H-Z-ZENA-—AEEHEH
HAEARS » FAK B AR B RM
GEMBERRE ZEMBARER
A& 228 45,868,0008 7T+ MiEE
#210,0008 TERAEBEHZE =
E——F=-A=+—HIEFEEZH
FITER °
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34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Sl

(b)

On 29 January 2010, the Company entered into a sale
and purchase agreement that the Company agreed to
sell the entire issued share capital of Direct Way Group
Limited for a total consideration of HK$4,500,000. The
disposal was completed on 29 January 2009.

Summary of the effects of the disposal of subsidiaries

are as follows:

Notes to the

(b)

Financial Statements

B 7% R MY R

31 March 2011 =&2——F=A=+—H

3. HEMEB LR — &

R-ZZE—ZFF-—A=t+hB &2
AFZL-—EHEEWHZ Bl xQ
7 @ & LL 48 X 184,500,000 7T H
EEEEBERATAEZHEEHTR
Ko HEZHER-_ZEZThhE—A

—thARM-

HEMBAR 2 EHMMT

HK$" 000
FH&T
Net assets disposed of: FTHECEEFE:
Property, plant and equipment M- BMERZE 6,556
Trade and other receivables and deposits B Z R HEMEWRREBERZS 522
Inventories =FE 195
Cash and bank balances BEeRBITEER 511
Tax payables FEAS B 1E (3)
Trade and other payables B REMEMNTIE (3,741)
4,040
Attributable goodwill EhEE 12,500
16,540
Release of translation reserve % BREE 5 5 18 (457)
Loss on disposal HEZEE (11,583)
4,500
Satisfied by: UTHAERZA
Cash Be 4,500
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEELEZRESRATFE:
Cash consideration ReRE 4,500
Cash and bank balances e RIBITEER (511)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents BRERBESZEERRAFE 3,989

For the period from 1 April 2009 to the date of
disposal, the above subsidiaries were engaged in
provision of general hospital services. The turnover
contributed by the subsidiaries was approximately
loss of approximately
HK$2,691,000 has recognised in the Group's loss for

HK$6,309,000 and

the year ended 31 March 2010.

H-_ZEZNFNAE—HEZHER
HAEARS - EIME AT ISR M
GEMERRE ZEMBATE
B 2
#92,691,0008 TERAEBEEZZ
E-EF=-FA=t+—HIEFEZE

2E#96,309,00058 7T * MEE

B -
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34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES - continued
() On 29 January 2010, the Company entered into a sale (c)

34. HEMRB LR —&
R=B-2F—A=+hA &2

and purchase agreement that the Company agreed
to sell the entire issued share capital of Smart Peak
Limited for a total consideration of HK$2,000,000. The

AF—EHESHZE Bt &AL
Al [E = % 2 K E2,000,00058 T &
EBEBRBRAAZEMEZRITR
K- HEEZEEENR=_ZEZTNE—A

disposal was completed on 29 January 2009.

Summary of the effects of the disposal of subsidiaries

are as follows:

ZtThBEZER-

HEMBAR 2RERMMMT

HK$' 000
FE T
Net assets disposed of: HEZEERE:
Property, plant and equipment ME - BMERREE 2,716
Trade and other receivables and deposits ZZREMEWRERIRS 1,397
Inventories FE 248
Cash and bank balances HERIRITER 505
Trade and other payables B REMEMNRE (591)
Amount due to a director ENESHE (2,508)
Amount due to a minority shareholder FEA 2D IR R FRIE (76)
Tax payables FE {4 #5418 9)
1,682
Attributable goodwill EhEE 12,000
13,682
Release of translation reserve 7 BREE W {15 (80)
Loss on disposal HEZEE (11,602)
2,000
Satisfied by: UTHAERZA
Cash Be 2,000
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEZRERAFEE
Cash consideration RENE 2,000
Cash and bank balances e RIBITEER (505)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents BRE&RBESZEERRAFE 1,495

For the period from 1 April 2009 to the date of
disposal, the above subsidiaries were engaged in
provision of general hospital services. The turnover
contributed by the subsidiaries was approximately
HK$3,313,000 and loss of approximately HK$465,000
has recognised in the Group’s loss for the year ended
31 March 2010.

H-ZEZENFNUA—HEZEHER
BiEARS - EAE AT ISR ME
GEMERRE ZEMBATE
R ¥ 58#93,313,0008 T * mEE
#465,0008 TERAEBEHZE =
E-FSFE=-HA=1+—HIEFEZE
BHER -
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35. DEFERRED TAXATION 35. IR ER IR
The following are the major deferred tax balances UTARFERBEAFERIAZEEER
recognised and movements thereon during the current and ERBEEGRRER & E)
prior year:
Deferred tax liabilities: BIERAAR -
Convertible
notes
A # B TR AR
HK$’ 000
FHET
At 1 April 2009 R-ZEZERFMNA—H 181
Charge to equity for the year FREERMBR 501
Credit to consolidated statement of FRFALEERE
comprehensive income for the year BERR (46)
At 31 March 2010 and 1 April 2010 R-ZE-ZEF=A=+—H
R—ZE-—ZFWA—H 636
Credit to consolidated statement of FRFTALEERE
comprehensive income for the year Bm iR (38)
At 31 March 2011 R-2——F=RA=+—H 598
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for DUTNHAMKERENMIER ZIELER
financial reporting purposes: HEESR D
2011 2010
—E——% —E-EF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Deferred tax assets ELERIEEE - =
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBEE (598) (636)
(598) (636)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the RBEBR  ZEBRAQNT ZAKE A
Company has unutilised tax losses of approximately BIEEE D B14985,691,0008 T (=& —
HK$85,691,000 (2010: HK$67,493,000) and HK$17,609,000 Z 4 67,493,000 7t) & 17,609,000/
(2010: HK$19,545,000) respectively available to set off gt (ZZE—F 4 19,545,000/ 7t) A A
against future assessable profits. No deferred tax asset has TERSE R REZRFUER o AR FRF
been recognised in respect of the unutilised tax losses due to IR B R RIOB - R S Ok B B R K S
the unpredictability of future profits streams. The tax losses ERIAELEREBEEE REBZBBEE
in Hong Kong may be carried forward indefinitely and the BAUERAEE MRPE2HREEE
tax losses in PRC may be expired within five years. BIAeE A A FE RN HY o
ZEEEEEBEBERARAA 143
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36. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 36. EEHAXIE
The Group were committed to make the following future AEEREAA T RIEFT > A HEY
minimum lease payments in respect of land and buildings REFASTEUTARBEEAS TSR
rented under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due ZIHA A :
as follows:
The Group
*xEE
2011 2010
—2——% —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FET THERT
Within one year —FR 13,733 13,933
In the second to fifth years inclusive E_ZLFE (BEERWME) 29,031 35,719
Over five years BB R E 8,461 13,601
51,225 63,253
37. COMMITMENTS 37. ik
The Group and the Company had no other significant AEBRAABTABRERRTEELME
commitments at the end of the reporting period. RAEIE ©
38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 38. A RAR
The Company
v /N
2011 2010
—E——% —E-BF
HK$' 000 HK$'000
THER THET
Guarantees given to bank, in respect BHBARMBAZ
of banking facilities utilised IRATRE/E L 2 R1T
by subsidiaries ER - 10,000
144 Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong.
The assets of the Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in funds under the control of trustee. The Group
contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme,

which contribution is matched by employees.

The employees of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries are
members of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme
operated by the PRC government. The Company’s PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, during
the year, the Group had entered into the following

significant transaction with related parties:

(a) Key management personnel
Remuneration for key personnel management,

including amount paid to the Company’s directors and

39.

40.

B 7% R MY R

31 March 2011 =Z2——H=A=+—H

iRt a1 5t B

AEBATREBAARESR IR
ARSI (8 - HB>AER
AEBZEEABBE  FABRBIEA
B2 ES - AEBREBHMAS5%
B E B BRI H AR -

ARABRHEMBARZEESTEEBMA
ERCEARERRKBEANFTEKE - &
RAZHENBARARFMRE2E
T B2 @R KR R AT AR AR
REF o A S B 3R KR A ET 8] 2 1 —
BEERRBEELRTEHER -

EXHEABALES

BREaaMBRERAMHIFLEZIRER
BERON R ANEE T HEERA LET
THERRS :

(a) ¥EEBAR
TEEEASHMHN (BEWF26R
IBBNTFARAEERETES

certain of the highest paid employee, as disclosed in HEECSFE)WMT :
Note 26 and 27, is as follows:

2011 2010
—E——F —E-ZF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FTET FET
Short-term employee benefits EHEEREAR 2,700 2,374
Share-based payment expenses DURHAERNRZEX 1,891 1,845
4,591 4,219
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40.

41.

42.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS - continued

(b) My. Yung, a director of the Company, has entered into
a personal guarantee agreement dated 15 June 2009
with Shanghai Pudong Development Bank amounting
to approximately RMB30,000,000 to secure bills
payable on behalf of the Group for a term of one year.

(c) On 8 March 2010, the Group acquired the entire issued
share capital of Nurture Fit Limited and its subsidiaries
from Mr. Yung, a director of the Company, at a
consideration of HK$600,000,000.

COMPARATIVE
Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified/
restated to confirm with the current year’s presentation and
accounting treatment.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of which
are limited liability companies, at 31 March 2011 are as
follows:

40. EXFABALE S &

(b) XRARES=FE=ZEER_ZZN
FRATHEBELEBHRERET
1 A #H ARY30,000,0007T Z
BAERGE URREEERE
NEBEER AH-—F -

() R=Z—-ZTF=ANB > XEEEH
AAFESHHZSEERBEEES
RARKREKBARZHE TR
7 5 X {8 5600,000,0005% TT ©

41. Lk BB F
ETHBRSECLCEHHE S5 4L
GRAFEEY2HREHEE -3 -

42. FEMELTF
AKPABR=BE——F=A=+—H2Z=E
EE AT (EEERAT)FBWT :

Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2010/2011
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42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued 42. TEMB AT — &
Nominal value
Place of of issued and  Percentage of
incorporation/ fully paid equity interest
establishment/ ordinary share/ attributable
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital  to the Group  Principal activities
ERTR
BRI BEEER HEEME
MELERE B/ ERME HEfMEFmE BREESLE FEXRH
Fujian Maidsen Enterprises Company The PRC RMB40,000,000 100%  Provision of healthcare and
Limited* hospital management
services
RREHREXERLA PE AR #40,000,0007 100% REBEREREERYE
Edward Hospital Company Limited? The PRC RMB40,000,000 55%  Provision of general
hospital services
EREREERAERAT hE AR %40,000,0007 55%  REGSUHEERRE
Jiaxing City Shuguang Western and The PRC RMB15,000,000 55%  Provision of general
Chinese Composite Hospital hospital services
Company Limited?
RATBXTABLESBR el AR#15,000,0007 55% REGEUBRRE
BRAF
Beiyi Renzhi (Beijing) Investment The PRC RMB6,457,725 70.1%  Provision of healthcare and
Consultancy Limited* hospital management
services
EECE (LR REZABRAA HE AR¥6,457,7257 70.1% RUBEREREERS
Zhuhai Zhongkangan Enterprises The PRC HK$3,000,000 100%  Provision of healthcare and
Management Limited* hospital management
services
BEREZLFEEARAT HE 78#3,000,0007 100% REBERBREERYK
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42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued 42. T EMBAF 18
Nominal value
Place of of issued and  Percentage of
incorporation/ fully paid equity interest
establishment/ ordinary share/ attributable
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital  to the Group  Principal activities
ERTR
B WEHER HREMEG
MELRRE B/ ERME EMEF@EE REEAL FERH
Hui Hao (HK) Group Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100% Investment holding
B (BR)BEEEERLA BB 7 %1,000,0007T 100% REER
Fujian Province Fuzhou City Huihao The PRC RMB30,000,000 100%  Pharmaceutical wholesale
Pharmaceutical Company Limited* and distribution business in
the PRC
BRABNTEREEERAR HE AR #30,000,0007 100% RABEZENRBERDHEXH
Putian Medicine Co. Ltd.* The PRC RMB5,000,000 100%  Pharmaceutical wholesale
and distribution business in
the PRC
GEEHEHBERRAR hE ARH5,000,0007 100% RPEZENHBRDEXS
Fujian Huiming Medicine Co. Ltd.* The PRC RMB5,000,000 100%  Pharmaceutical wholesale
and distribution business in
the PRC
BREEHBEARAT hE A K#5,000,0007 100% RPEZENRBERDHERS
Fujian Huihao Sihai Pharmaceutical The PRC RMB15,856,000 99.29%  Pharmaceutical retail chain
Chain Company Limited* business in the PRC
FREEFNEEXEHARAF HE AR 15,856,0007T 99.29% RABEZENSEEHEXY
# The English transliteration of the Chinese names in this report, where # RBEPNEB 2 ETPEEERR
indicated, is included for information only, and should not be regarded FERABERLEBZ EXNEXETE o
as the official English names of such Chinese names.
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, ERAIAQBMB AR EESARHY
in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the results REBXEEREEFEATFEE -ES
or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries RERHEMHBAR 2ERBEREIRE
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of BRATE ©
excessive length.
148 Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited
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43. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt (which
includes bill payables, bank borrowings, Promissory Note
and Convertible Note), cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued

share capital, reserves and accumulated losses.

B 7% R MY R

31 March 2011 =&2——F=A=+—H

43. EXEBEER

FEEERHERAUBREAEE CER
HEFELE TEBELLERERER
RBHBRRTFRRADR - RBEFE
AEEZEERBESTE -

FEBCEXRGEBEREER (ETEERE
NRE - RITEE AARBRUTRRE
B RERBEEFERERAQAER
ABERSN (EFEEEBTRAE - #4E
&k RZitERE) -

Gearing ratio HEERAMRLLE
The gearing ratios at 31 March 2011 and 2010 were as R—_B——FR_E—FBF=H=1+—
follows: HeEESBLLERNT :
2011 2010
—_ET——F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
TET FE T
Debt (note (a)) B (K@) 273,832 320,193
Cash and bank balances BHERBITEE (91,036) (76,986)
Net debt B FR 182,796 243,207
Equity (note (b)) B (H7aE (b)) 836,992 703,984
Gearing ratio EEBF/E=R 0.22 0.35
Notes: B EE -

(@) Debt comprises bill payables, bank borrowings, Convertible
Note and Promissory Note as detailed in notes 18, 19, 21 and

22 respectively.

(b)  Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group.

() EBREEEMERE RITEE - T8RE
FERARER  FHB2 B HRME
1819 21/%22°

(b) BRABEANEEFRBEARKGHE -
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44, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 44. £ T HR
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) &EMTHESLE
2011 2010
—E——% —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FHET T
Financial assets HHEEE
Loans and receivables (including EXRERRE (BERER
cash and cash equivalents) HEZEER) 404,623 318,122
Derivative financial instruments PEARAFEEBRERIK
classified as fair value through ZOUTEEMIA
profit or loss 432 96
Financial liabilities MEBAR
Amortised cost 12 85 AR 488,118 543,000
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MERBERAR|RBE
policies

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk and interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. The management manges

and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate

measures are implemented on a timely and effective BAfE I

manner.

FEBEZEXBEESHEMBRE
mERR(BEEYARRIEE
) FERRBRABDESER-
AEEzEERARBERIRENE
RAERANESHTES  BREYH
REEHBARR ZEETFZER
ERE -EEEEERERZER
B BARUKREBERzZSXERSE
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

B 7% R MY &

31 March 2011 =Z2——H=A=+—H

4. €T R -8
(b) MERBREEEBERBE &

(i) Market risk (i) TGRS
The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the AEBEZERFTESREEK
financial risks of changes in foreign exchange STEERRFZEEE 20 BERE
rates and interest rates. Bz o
Market risk exposures are measured using FrAZ 2h B R USRE D
sensitivity analysis. MEt= o
There has been no change to the Group's AEBEFRAZ ZHGRERSEE
exposure to market risks or the manner in which BRTERBZ A ETES
it manages and measures the risk. H o
Foreign currency risk management SR B EE
Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign REEE THE R TH U
currency sales and purchases, which expose the ETZHERFEEE - £
Group to foreign currency risk. The management EEEAZIINERE EEHES
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will EZINER  WAEREEE
consider hedging significant foreign currency B E RINE BB T o
exposure should the need arises.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign RIRE BH » NEBLIMNEST
currency denominated monetary assets and BeEMEEREKEBEZIR
monetary liabilities at the reporting date are as HEWOT :
follows:
Liabilities Assets
AR HE
2011 2010 2011 2010
—e——F —E-EHF IT8——F =—IZT-IZTF
HK$’ 000 HK$"000 HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FTER FHET FEX FHET
RMB AR 290,215 292,527 352,058 392,108
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

(i)

Market risk — continued

Foreign currency risk management — continued
Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the effects of
fluctuation in RMB.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 5% increase and decrease in the Hong
Kong dollars against the relevant foreign
currencies. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to
key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and
foreign currency forward contracts, and adjusts
their translation at the period end for a 5%
change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes external loans as well as loans
to foreign operations within the Group where the
denomination of the loan is in a currency other
than the currency of the lender or the borrower.
A positive number below indicates an increase
in profit and other equity where the Hong Kong
dollars strengthen 5% against the relevant
currency. For a 5% weakening of the Hong Kong
dollars against the relevant currency, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the profit
and other equity, and the balances below would

be negative.

44. €T R -8
(b) MERBREEEBERBE &

()

TR -
SR m BT — AR
FEBTERNHARB KRB 2

E/
E o

TRFHFJAEERE T A
B SN FHE % B2 (B 5% 2 8=k
E-RARFETEEEAER
HINE R RA 2 BRE
EERAB5%  HAEEENMG
THEEHR I EREE - &
RUE D AT B IE i REE IR 2 SN
SHEEREBEREMIES
B AEHRERNBRZ2BE
HEREFEHS%ZFHE - 8
RESTEENMBEEREE
BAEIER 2 ER - TAEE
ERARUMBEHE G HHEAT
SNEWEHE o TXHZ EMAE
M B T A E# A E5%
RafkHEMmER 2 EAH
e MmdBrRiBEERRE
5% » A R H b S E H
BRRABEzESEEE M T
Pl ha s -
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

44. €T R -8
(b) MERBREEEBERBE &

SUR

Market risk — continued
Foreign currency risk management — continued

Sensitivity analysis — continued

TR -
SR m BT — AR
HBE D —F

Impact of RMB

ARBzRE
2011 2010
—Z2——% —E-ZF
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
TFHET FHE T
Other equity HithfE s 3,092 1,324
Note: B &E

This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding
on receivables and payables denominated in respective

currencies at the end of the reporting period.

Interest rate risk management

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk relates
primarily to variable-rate borrowings. It is the
Group's policy to keep its borrowings at fixed
rate of interests so as to minimise the fair value

interest rate risk.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on
financial assets and financial liabilities are
detailed in the liquidity risk management section
of this note. The Group's cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
HIBOR arising from the Group’s Hong Kong dollar

denominated borrowings.

LT3 E E R E RS MR A EE
BRI EZBREFAER BN RIE
P72 2 BB P 3R o

FEREER

AEEBzRERFAERAME
BERFEMEEMERE - AEEHZ
BRREREEUEER =
R BUURA A FERER

FEEHRMBEERMBEE
P& 2 R ZRE R IRA
MR E SRR EE -8 -
FEBZRERFNZEAREE
EHRRAEBLGBETEHEZ B
EREBRTRZER SR
EEZEE -
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

(i)

Market risk — continued

Interest rate risk management - continued
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for both derivatives and non-derivative
instruments at the end of the reporting period.
For variable-rate borrowings, the analysis is
prepared assuming the amount of liability
outstanding at the end of the reporting period
was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis
point increase or decrease in HIBOR is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to
key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably

possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s loss for the year ended 31 March
2011 would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$48,000 (2010: HK$7,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group's exposure to interest
rates on its variable rate borrowings during the
year ended 31 March 2011.

44. €T R -8
(b) MERBREEEBERBE &

()

TR -
FIZERBER -
BB E DT
TXZHRBRED N IRBEITE
TAERFTETARBERR
P 2 R REBRER] o BUF
BfEEMS  HAaMHEERR
BEMREREEZAEEH
RE(EFE ARG RER - K@
AMEREBEASRENRE
B D ER A& BRITREZER 20
HS0ER - HREEE T
ARSEHR A REH -

fisi Fl 2 £ F T BBR50%F -
MmArE e ERETE - 8l
rEBBRE_ZT——F=A
=t+t—HLEFEZEEZRD
/#8in#348,00058 T (=& —
ZF 1 7,00087T) o IIEE
REAEBREZ—_Z——F
SA=E+-HALEFEAMER
BEMAZ ZFIRRERE o
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

4. EMT R -1&
(b) MERBRERERRBE &
policies — continued

(ii) Credit risk (i) EERE

As at 31 March 2011 and 2010, the Group’'s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause
a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties and
financial guarantees provided by the Group is

arising from:

J the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position;

and

o the amount of contingent liabilities in

R-B——SR-Z-BF=
A=+—-8 XEERHFH
REBITEERAEEATIEM
ZHBERAES > XASA
EERTHKBAZBEEE
RETIRE :

s HAUBRRRAESL

HERAUBEEZR
EHE &

s HASHEHRIBER

relation to the financial guarantees provided (FEBEHMAMEE39) 186
by the Group as disclosed in Note 39. ZHEABBEEE -

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of
each individual trade debt and debt investments
at the end of each reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the

Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating

agencies.

REFERRBEZRE  F&
EEEECER—EEREE
BRI FERME  FEMAERA
MERERF » URARBIRE
TEWEBHER - I A
EEENEREHREFREL
B EEREBIREZTWE
T8 URERAREREZE
BFH AR ZBERE ° it
5 ARAEBERR  FE
BzEERRE KERD -

R F 7B E R TR
BETEFEENRZRT &
RBEETZEFERBER -
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

(i)

(iii)

Credit risk — continued

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds which are deposited with several banks
with high credit ratings, the Group does not
have any other significant concentration of credit
risk. Trade and other receivables consist of a
large number of customers, spread across diverse

industries and geographical areas.

Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk
management rests with the board of directors,
which has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management
of the Group’s short, medium and long-term
funding and liquidity management requirements.
The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve
borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the

maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

As at 31 March 2011, the Group has available
unutilised overdrafts and short and medium
term bank loan facilities of approximately
HK$1,131,000 (2010: HK$2,000,000) and
HK$59,270,000 (2010: HK$39,350,000)

respectively.

44. €T R -8
(b) MERBREEEBERBE &

(i)

(iii)

fEHmBR — &

BRERNETEAESEENR
RITZRBESHEE &S
FERR - ANEEILEEM
HppEAR &R EERR - B
SREMEBVNRESRKE
BF  EBEZETETERL

=
oo ©

mENEEmBREE
EFZEREEERDESAR
ZBREML MESSCEY
—EeEzRBDESARE
HER  RUEEAEEZE
B pHRRBESREMNR
HESEEFER - AEEEB
RETE2MHE  RTEER
BREERE  UREHENE
ARERRERETESR B
EMBEERMBEEZD
BN  BUEERBESE
B o

R=ZE-——-F=ZA=+—
B - AKEEBEARBBEEX
REHRPHBITENRE
2Bl #91,131,0008 T (=&
— &4 12,000,000 7T) &
59,270,000 T (=& — %
139,350,000/ 7T) °
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B 7% R MY &

31 March 2011 =&2——F=A=+—H

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

44. &M T A -8
(b) HERBREERERBE —M®

policies — continued

(iii) AENE R M ETE &

(iii) Liquidity risk management - continued

i H#

The following tables detail the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its financial
liabilities as well as derivative and certain non-
derivative financial assets which are included
in the maturity analysis provided internally to
the key management personnel for the purpose
of managing liquidity risk. For non-derivative
financial assets, the tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted contractual maturities
of the financial assets including interest that
will be earned on those assets except where the
Group anticipates that the cash flow will occur
in a different period. For non-derivative financial
liabilities, the tables reflect the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay.
The tables include both interest and principal

cash flows.

TRAMASEII AV BEEE
URITETARE T IFITER
BEEZNBRENHIR - 25
ARBTFARETEEEAESZ
HRDH - WEBERBEESE
B o BIBEOTAMBEEMS -
TRITERPYBEE 2 REER
BRIMRR(BEZEEE
& BRE 2 RS 4w - A
SEEEREMPBEEZ
BEMBERI o BLIELTER T
BEMS  TRERRERAEE
BWERNRzRT B 28
BEEAUBRRERE - TK
BRAEREERTRE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 7% 3R 3= B &

31 March 2011 =2——F=A=+—H

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 4. EMT R &
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MBREEEERRBE &
policies — continued
(iii) Liquidity risk management - continued (i) RO ECAMEE &
The Group r*EE
At 31 March 2011 R-e——%F=A=+—8H
Weighted
average Total Total
effective undiscounted carrying
interest rate  Within 1year 2to5years Over5years  cash flows amount
mEEy KA
ERflE —%R —Eif BRIF HeRME EE#E

% HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000
FiEn FiEn FiEn FiEn FTén

Non-derivative financial ~ i MERE

liabilities
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEMFHE - 240,221 - - 240,221 240,221
Bank borrowings RiTEE 5.45% 51,356 - - 51,356 49,194
Amounts due to ENFERRE
non-controlling A
shareholders 551 - - 551 551
Promissory note RAEE 3.0% - - 230,000 230,000 194,183
Convertible note TaREE 10.97% - - 6,500 6,500 3,969
292,128 - 236,500 528,628 488,118
At 31 March 2010 R-ZE-Z2F=ZA=+—H
Weighted
average Total Total
effective undiscounted carrying
interest rate~ Within 1 year ~ 2to5years  Over 5 years cash flows amount
EF RER
BRAZ —£R ZERf BRLE RIRAE REAE

% HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEx TR TExn TR TRR

Non-derivative financial ~ i MERE

liabilities
Trade and other payables ~ EZREMEFHE - 250,748 - - 250,748 250,748
Bank borrowings RITHER 4.9% 47310 - - 47310 47310
Amounts due to ERFERRR
non-controlling HE
shareholders 719 - - 719 719
Promissory note RAZE 3.0% - - 290,000 290,000 240,482
Convertible note TRRZE 10.97% - - 6,500 6,500 3,741
298,777 - 296,500 595,277 543,000
Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited
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B 7% ¥R 3R B &

31 March 2011 =Z2——F=A=+—H

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 4. EMT R &
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) HERKREEEERBKX—&
policies — continued
(iii) Liquidity risk management - continued (iii) RBHETELEEEER &
The Company b /N
At 31 March 2011 R-e——F=A=+—8H
Weighted
average Total Total
effective undiscounted carrying
interest rate  Within 1year 2to5years Over5years  cash flows amount
mEEy KR
RRf® -%h —EZif BRIF HEREE FE#E

% HKS$' 000 HKS$' 000 HKS$' 000 HKS$' 000 HK$" 000
FiERx FiERn FiERx FiEx Tén

Non-derivative financial i HERE

liabilities
Accruals and other payables BT & AR A B HE - 1,696 - - 1,696 1,696
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE{} Kt B2 AFIE - 22,250 - - 22,250 22,250
Promissory note RASE 3.0% - - 230,000 230,000 194,183
Convertible note TaREE 10.97% - - 6,500 6,500 3,969
23,946 - 236,500 260,446 222,098
At 31 March 2010 R-E—Z2F=A=+—H
Weighted
average Total Total
effective undiscounted carrying
interest rate ~ Within 1 year ~ 2to5years  Over 5 years cash flows amount
MmEFHY )
BRA% -£R ZZRE BBLE HERAE RE2E

% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TiEn

Non-derivative financial ~ Efi$HERR

liabilities

Accruals and other payables  FEEt & AR A B HE - 4,400 - - 4,400 4,400

Amounts due to subsidiaries JEf} KB A FFE - 22,274 - - 22,274 22,274

Promissory note RLZE 3.0% - - 290,000 290,000 240,482

Convertible note TRREE 10.97% - - 6,500 6,500 3,741

26,674 - 29500 33174 270897

ZEEEFEEBEBERALDT 159
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt 7% 3R 3= B &

31 March 2011 =2——F=A=+—H

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(c) Fair value of financial instruments
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

are determined as follows:

(i)

(ii)

the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative instruments)
with standard terms and conditions and traded
on active liquid markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices and ask
prices respectively; and

the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities (including derivative
instruments) are determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis using prices or rates
from observable current market transactions as
input. For an option-based derivative, the fair
value is estimated using option pricing model (for
example, the Black-Scholes option pricing model
and Binomial option pricing model).

Except as detailed in the following table, the directors

consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets

and financial liabilities recorded in the consolidated

financial statements approximate to their fair values.

44. €T R -8
(c) €MIAZLATFE
B REERMBEREZATE
ZIEWT

(i)

=

EERRREHELASREBET
SEECHBEERVKEEE
(BESTETIR) ZAFE " T)
PRIZEMSECEHREAE
i R

MBEERMBER (BEDT
ATHR)ZAFELREBEKRR
BERDHT - UEBRMZE
BEARAENHBITFAX
GBERAERERBAE
Al o UHIEAER ZITET
AEmE - AFEDUBEEE
B3 (A48 0 5o — &F 7 2T i
EEREAKR - BEXHEEER
H)EE -

AR RTRAFHES 51

A D IR E R A RS
£ 2 EEEREAFEAE -

At 31 March 2011

R-S—%F=A=1+—H

At 31 March 2010
RZE—ZFF=RA=+—H

Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
RmE{E SFE BREE NS
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx FEx FET FET
Financial liabilities MBER
Convertible note GIE:Y 3,969 4,298 3,741 3,741
Promissory note A EE 194,183 116,400 240,482 240,482
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Notes to the Financial Statements

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(c) Fair value of financial instruments — continued

Sl

Fair value measurements recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial

instruments that are measured subsequent to initial

recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to

3 based on the degree to which the fair value is

observable:

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets

for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly

(i.e. derived from prices); and

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs
for the asset or liability that are not based on

observable market data (unobservable inputs).

B 7% R MY &

31 March 2011 =Z2——F=A=+—H

44. e T R -8
() ERMIAZATFE-E
REBHBRRENERZ A FE
i E
TREMRDSEBEERAFE
E REATEIBRZEESS
1B EBMITAZDH

1. RAFEFENREERD
LIRABEESEEZRE
(REERR)E

2. 2RNFEFEDRBEEER
SBEZEE (MER) REE
(AR BER) TBEA AR
B(TRBERAEE2RE)
R

3. 3RAFEFHENRBMER
fif (BIELIEE R ATE R TS
BE2EEREE2@ARE
(FRIB R\ ARIE))E -

The Group and the Company FEERFLT
At 31 March 2011 R-E——%#=A=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
18R 2R 3R #at
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’ 000
FET FET FET FET
Financial assets MERE
Derivative financial TEEmMIA
instruments - - 432 432
BEEEBEERARA
010/72011
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Bt 7% o3 K &

31 March 2011 =&2——$=A=+—H

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 44. eI R &
(c) Fair value of financial instruments — continued (c) &EMIAZLAFE—&E
Fair value measurements recognised in the RGEHBEMREERAERZ X FE
consolidated statement of financial position — iTE &
continued
The movement during the year ended 31 March 2011 BE—Z——F=HA=+—HL*=E
in the balance of Level 3 fair value measurements is as ER3RATFEEZESREE M
follows: T
Conversion option
embedded in
convertible note
ARBEREANE
ZimpRiE
HK$' 000
THERT
At 1 April 2010 R-ZE-ZFWTA—H 96
Change in fair value recognised BRAFLEEZEH 336
At 31 March 2011 R-ZE-——F%=A=+—H 432
At 31 March 2010 R-ZEB-Z2F=ZA=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
14 24K 34K st
HK$'000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THET THET THET FET
Financial assets HBEEE
Derivative financial TESmMIA
instruments - - 96 96
162 Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2010/2011
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B 7% R MY &

31 March 2011 =&2——F=A=+—H

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 44. e T R -8
(c) Fair value of financial instruments — continued (c) &EMIAZLAFE—&E
The movement during the year ended 31 March 2010 BE-Z—ZSF=HA=1+—HLHF
in the balance of Level 3 fair value measurements is as ER3RAFEFEZEHEE M
follows: T 5
Conversion option
embedded in
convertible note
ARERENE
ZiBERiE
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 April 2009 R=ZZFENFME—H 3
Change in fair value recognised BRAFEZH 93
At 31 March 2010 R-ZE-Z2F=A=+—H 96
There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 in the RAEE 1 RE2RBEIL EER o
current year.
45. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45. HtEMBERR
The financial statements were approved and authorised for BB ERR=ZE——F~A=+ttHE
issue by the board of directors on 27 June 2011. ESSMERRETE -
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Financial Summary

MBRE

At 31 March 2011 R=2——F=A=+—H

For the year ended 31 March
BE-A=+—HLEEE
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—E——% —EZ-FF ZEThE ZEBINF ZEBTLH
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000
TET FET THER FET TExT

Result Ef

Turnover BEE 1,490,868 179,765 170,087 135,943 77,521
Profit/(loss) before taxation BREADEF (BE) 58,751 (204,913)  (178,232) (1,589) 8,096
Taxation Bi1| (21,541) (1,723) (12,228) (6,184) (1,227)
Profit/(loss) for the year FERF (FE) 37,210 (206,636)  (190,460) (7,773) 6,869

Profit/(loss) attributable to LU A L&A (518)

- Owners of the Company —ARAREEA 31,456 (211,283)  (200,548) (17,891) 5,981
— Non-controlling interests —FERER 5,754 4,647 10,088 10,118 888
37,210 (206,636)  (190,460) (7,773) 6,869

As at 31 March

R=A=+—H
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
- -T2 ZEBETNF ZEBENF ZETLF
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
THET THET TET THET TET

Assets and liabilities BERAR
Total assets BEE 1,374,723 1,282,732 394,977 586,649 172,976
Total liabilities FN=F (498,025) (545,890) (38,915) (82,165) (38,249)
876,698 736,842 356,062 504,484 134,727
164 Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited
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